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Million Hope Industries
Holdings Limited
EXFTHEZEARLT
(Stock Code B {n X5 : 1897)

Million Hope Industries (BVI)
Limited

Million Hope (BVI) Limited

GROUP STRUCTURE
@2
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M IRE &

Revenue Profit attributable to owners
Ka of the Company for the year
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“"Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report
together with the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2020.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$299.8 million, representing a 20.4%
decrease as compared to HK$376.6 million recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2019. The drop in revenue was
mainly due to overall delay of the master programmes
of the Group’s certain projects during the year and the
suspension of installation works in construction sites
following the supply chain disruption caused by the
outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) in
the Mainland China during the first quarter of year 2020.

The Group recorded consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company totalled HK$24.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$22.9 million). When
compared to the consolidated profit for the last year of
HK$45.5 million before the one-off listing expenses of
HK$22.6 million incurred for the Company’s listing on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”), the consolidated profit for
the current year dropped by HK$21.3 million or 46.8%.
Such drop in consolidated profit was mainly attributed
to (i) the drop in amount of gross profit following the
drop in revenue as explained above; (ii) the impairment
loss of HK$1.3 million recognised for trade debtors and
contract assets for the current year compared to reversal
of impairment loss of HK$3.1 million for last year; and
(iii) the decrease in gain on change in fair value of
investment properties held by the Group from HK$3.2
million last year to HK$0.5 million this year.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EfEiREES

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK$0.06,
based on the weighted average number of 436,332,630
shares in issue, compared to HK$1.06 in the last year
which was based on the weighted average number of
21,517,869 shares in issue.

As at 31 March 2020, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$514.9 million (31 March 2019: HK$508.8
million), representing an increase of 1.2% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2020 was
HK$1.18 based on the issued shares of 436,332,630 shares
in issue (31 March 2019: HK$1.17).

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK2.0 cents per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 3
September 2020. This, together with an interim dividend
of HK1.2 cents per share (2019: nil) distributed during the
year, gives a total dividend of HK3.2 cents per share for
the year (2019: HK2.0 cents per share). The proposed final
dividend will be paid on 15 September 2020 following
approval at the annual general meeting scheduled to
be held on 25 August 2020 and shall be paid out of the
Company'’s other reserves account.

BUSINESS REVIEW

COVID-19 has impacted significantly on the Group.
Restrictions on travel interrupted workers’ return
from Chinese New Year holidays and delayed our
manufacturing process. The interruption on the
construction industry in Hong Kong and shutting down
generally has further caused our aluminum window
and curtain wall completion great delays. The Group’s
revenue for the year under review was down from last
year's HK$376.6 million to HK$299.8 million, a drop of
20.4%.
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PROSPECTS

Given the undersupply of residential properties, both the
Hong Kong Government and the property developers are
actively building residential properties to meet the strong
market demand.

Over the past decade, podium facade and curtain wall
works have grown from a niche market to a distinct
sub-sector of the construction industry. In a typical new
building project, podium facade and curtain wall works
are part of the building construction works. Therefore,
the prosperity of the construction industry will help
increase the aluminium windows and curtain wall works.

The aluminium windows and curtain wall works industry
is likely to continue its growth in the coming years
as driven by the demand over supply situation of the
public and private residential buildings in Hong Kong.
The continuous development of the New Territories is
likely to bring business opportunities to the aluminium
windows and curtain wall works industry in future.
As at 31 March 2020, the Group has contracts on
hand amounting to HK$922.4 million. We have every
confidence that the Group will grow from strength to
strength.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EEiREES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EFEiREES

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our management and staff for
their outstanding contribution to the Group. They are
an amazing team that all of them come down to three
simple beliefs: co-operation, trust and commitment. Their
creative thinking, dedications to work and aspirations
to perfection have enabled the Group to develop
competitive edge in this highly competitive market. |
would also like to thank our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their continuous support and trust.
Thank you so much. | really appreciate it.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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The Group, through Million Hope Industries Limited,
the principal operating subsidiary of the Company, is a
subcontractor principally engaged in the design, supply
and installation of facade and curtain walls systems,
with a focus on curtain walls, aluminium windows and
doors, with an operating history of over 20 years in Hong
Kong. The Group provides one-stop design, supply and
installation services for curtain walls, aluminium windows
and doors on both new and existing buildings, and works
closely with customers and architects to offer tailor-made
designs and products to suit the project requirements.
The Group’s principal customers are main contractors and
property developers.

Major Projects Completed During the Year

(1) Residential development at TPTL 225, Pak Shek
Kok, Tai Po, New Territories — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall system to residential
tower

OPERATIONS REVIEW
F %O EE
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Residential development at TPTL 225, Pak
Shek Kok, Tai Po, New Territories
MAXFAAARFEHBERE225RZEE
ERIEHE
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 ¥ [O) f§#

)

3)

(4)

(5)

Commercial development at STTL 143, New Town
Plaza, Shatin, New Territories — Design, supply and
installation of glass wall, shop front, bi-folding
door, glass balustrade, aluminium cladding and
louvre

Residential development at STTL 605 Lok Wo Sha
Lane at Ma On Shan, Shatin, New Territories —
Design, supply and installation of sliding folding
door, window and glass wall

Residential development at TMTL 541, So Kwun
Wat Road, Area 56, Tuen Mun, New Territories
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window and door

Residential development at 16 and 18 Cape Road,
Chung Hom Kok, Hong Kong — Design, supply and

installation of aluminium window

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 ¥ [0 f§#

Residential development at Site N of TKOTL
70 RP, Lohas Park Package 6 (rendering of the

development)

A BB R 570K ERER B H R M 5B N B b AR N
ZEEBRREE (RFH2E)

Residential development at TSWTL 34,
Area 115, Tin Shui Wai, New Territories
¥R RIKEN 158 RKE ™ ik ER 583458 2 (£
EEREH

Major Projects Undertaken During the Year

(1

)

©)

4

Residential development at Site N of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 6 — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window and door

Residential development at Site N of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 6 — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium grille and cladding work
to AC platform

Residential development at Site C1 of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 7 — Design, supply and
installation of tower curtain wall and podium glass
wall

Residential development at TSWTL 34, Area
115,Tin Shui Wai, New Territories — Design, supply
and installation of curtain wall

FARENEEIE

(1

(2)

(3

4)

A BT B ER 7055 8RR B R S
W BN EEHRIEE — Rt HE
RzHEKinE R

A& E R ™ B ER 7055 8RER B RS S
W BN (EEHRIEE — Rt #HLE
REZFEZARTE 2R EMRESHRT

2

BERTHREIOESBRBRAHEREL
BBz FE%REE — Rt HE
REZEXREEBREERFIERL
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 ¥ [O) f§#

(5)

(6)

@)

8

Residential development at Site | of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 10 — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall system and aluminium
window and door

House development at No. 1 Plantation Road,
Hong Kong - Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, glass door, curtain wall and
metal cladding

Commercial development at No. 75-85 Lockhart
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong - Design, supply and
installation of aluminium unitised curtain wall,
glass wall, aluminium cladding, stone cladding,
glass canopy and louvre

Residential development at TMTL 539, Hoi Wing
Road and Hang Fu Street, Area 16, Tuen Mun,
New Territories — Design, supply and installation of
curtain wall to tower

Residential development at TMTL 539, Hoi

Wing Road and Hang Fu Street, Area 16,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

HAEMBRBEREEHXAEI6EEMT
MR E539 2 EEHRER
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Major Projects Awarded During the Year

(1) Residential development at N.K.I.L. 6565, Kai
Tak, Kowloon — Design, supply and installation of
curtain wall, aluminium window system and facade
lighting

(2) Residential development at N.K.I.L. 6565, Kai Tak,
Kowloon - Design, supply and installation of glass
balustrade

(3) Residential development at 294-296A Prince
Edward Road, Kowloon - Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall, aluminium window and
door

4) Residential development at N.K.I.L. 6564, Kai
Tak, Kowloon — Design, supply and installation of
curtain wall

(5) Residential development at Site A and Estate
Road of Wong Chuk Hang Station Property
Development, Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 467 -
Design, Supply and Installation of Aluminum and
glass facade at podium and transfer plate

The total amount of contracts on hand of the Group as at
31 March 2020 was HK$922.4 million.

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 ¥ [0 f§#
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
811 #5 (o R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Summary of Results

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$299.8 million, representing a 20.4%
decrease as compared to HK$376.6 million recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2019. The drop in revenue was
mainly due to overall delay of the master programmes
of the Group’s certain projects during the year and the
suspension of installation works in construction sites
following the supply chain disruption caused by the
COVID-19 outbreak in the Mainland China during the
first quarter of year 2020.

The Group recorded consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company totalled HK$24.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$22.9 million). When
compared to the consolidated profit for the last year of
HK$45.5 million before the one-off listing expenses of
HK$22.6 million incurred for the Company’s listing on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the consolidated
profit for the current year dropped by HK$21.3 million
or 46.8%. Such drop in consolidated profit was mainly
attribute to (i) the drop in amount of gross profit
following the drop in revenue as explained above; (ii)
the impairment loss of HK$1.3 million recognised for
trade debtors and contract assets for the current year
compared to reversal of impairment loss of HK$3.1
million for last year; and (iii) the decrease in gain on
change in fair value of investment properties held by the
Group from HK$3.2 million last year to HK$0.5 million
this year.
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The basic earnings per share for the year was HK$0.06,
based on the weighted average number of 436,332,630
shares in issue, compared to HK$1.06 in the last year
which was based on the weighted average number of
21,517,869 shares in issue.

As at 31 March 2020, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$514.9 million (31 March 2019: HK$508.8
million), representing an increase of 1.2% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2020 was
HK$1.18 based on the issued shares of 436,332,630 shares
in issue (31 March 2019: HK$1.17).

Group Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group mainly financed its operations through
internally generated cash flows and utilised the banking
facilities for performance bonds for carrying out its
projects during the year ended 31 March 2020. In the
long term, the directors of the Company believe that
the Group’s operation will continue to be financed in
this way. The Group has accessed to facilities from banks
with an aggregate amount of HK$265.0 million, of which
HK$105.0 million has been utilised for performance
bonds as at 31 March 2020. There was no bank loans
drawn down by the Group as at 31 March 2020. The
performance bonds under these banking facilities bear
charges at prevailing market condition.

The Group is prudent in managing its cash balance and
maintains sound cash flow generating capability. The
total cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to
HK$297.7 million as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
HK$304.6 million), which accounted for 65.9% of the
current assets (31 March 2019: 61.5%).
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has
a net cash inflow of HK$15.1 million in its operating
activities (mainly due to decrease in debtors, deposits
and prepayments and refund of Hong Kong Profits Tax
paid), a net cash inflow of HK$5.7 million in its investing
activities (mainly due to bank interest income received)
and a net cash outflow of HK$27.2 million in its financing
activities (mainly due to dividend paid and repayment
to a related company). As at 31 March 2020, the Group
was in a net cash position as there was no bank loans
outstanding. As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net
current assets was HK$400.9 million (31 March 2019:
HK$393.4 million) and the current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 8.91 times (31 March
2019: 4.87 times).

With its sufficient cash balances and banking facilities
available, the Group’s liquidity position will remain
healthy in the coming year, with sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations, operation and future
development requirements.

Treasury Policy

The Group’s treasury policy aims to minimise its exposure
to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to engage in
any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products.
Foreign currency exposures of the Group arise mainly
from the purchase of raw materials using Renminbi in
the Mainland China. The Group currently does not have
any hedging arrangements to control the risks related
to fluctuations in exchange rates, and will determine
if any hedging is required, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

The Group does not have significant exposure to gains
or losses arising from the movement of foreign currency
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar as most of
the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2020, the shareholders’ funds of the
Group were HK$514.9 million, including reserves of
HK$471.2 million, an increase of HK$6.1 million from
HK$508.8 million as at 31 March 2019. The consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2020
was HK$1.18 per share based on the issued shares of
436,332,630 shares, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$1.17 per share as at 31 March 2019. The
increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable to
the retained profits.

Capital Structure

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity,
comprising share capital and reserves. As at 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019, there was no bank loans.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

There was no significant investment, acquisition and
disposals that should be notified to the shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not pledge any assets
to banks or other financial institutions (31 March 2019:
nil).

Future Plan for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

As at the date of this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plan for material investments or capital assets in
the coming year.
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Performance Bonds and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts
amounting to HK$105.0 million (31 March 2019:
HK$110.6 million).

The Group did not have significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has no capital
commitment (31 March 2019: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

We believe that a team of skilled staff members with
appropriate knowledge and experience is crucial to the
Group’s continuing success. The Group intends to use its
best efforts to attract and retain appropriate and suitable
personnel to serve the Group.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 235 full time
employees (of which 116 employees were in Mainland
China). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, including discretionary bonus and depending
on the position, cash allowances, to its employees.
The Group also provides retirement schemes, medical
benefits, on-the-job training to its employees and
sponsors its employees to attend various external training
courses.

The Group determines the commencing salary of
its employees mainly based on each employee’s
qualifications, relevant experience, position and seniority.
The Group conducts an annual review on salary increase,
discretionary bonuses and promotions based on,
including but not limited to, the performance of each
employee, and the profitability of the Group.
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The directors of the Company recognise the importance
of good corporate governance practices for protection
of the interests of the shareholders and are keen on
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
This is reflected in terms of a quality Board and the
emphasis on transparency and accountability.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has
complied with all the Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except for the
following deviations:

- Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates
that independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders of the Company. Mr.
Poon Kan Young and Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki,
the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, were unable to attend the Company’s
2019 annual general meeting due to other
important engagements.
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- Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates
that the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting and he should also
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees to attend the annual
general meeting. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Poon Kan Young, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company, and Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company, were unable to attend the Company’s
2019 annual general meeting due to their other
important engagements. Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart, the Deputy Chairman of the Board, took
the chair of that meeting in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and other
directors were of sufficient caliber and knowledge
for answering questions at that meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the businesses of the Group. It
assumes responsibility for the formulation of the business
strategies and policies, the monitoring of the business
performance and the corporate governance functions.
Functions reserved to the Board include (i) approval
of annual and interim results and significant changes
in accounting policy; (ii) overseeing capital structure,
the risk management and internal control systems; (iii)
setting the Group’s remuneration policy and dividend
policy; (iv) appointment of directors; and (v) supervision
of management and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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The day-to-day operation management and
administration of the Company’s business are delegated
to the Joint Managing Directors and the senior
management, who fulfill their duties within their scope
of authority and responsibility. Major functions delegated
to management include (i) preparation of annual and
interim results; (ii) execution of business strategic plans
adopted by the Board; (iii) implementation of adequate
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv)
compliance with the relevant statutory requirements.

All directors are provided in a timely manner with
appropriate and adequate information on the Group’s
businesses to enable them to make an informed decision
and perform their duties and responsibilities. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing his duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Board Composition

The Board composition demonstrates a diversity of skills,
knowledge and experience and knowledge desirable for
effective leadership of the Company and has a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) to
ensure independence in decision making. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead where
potential conflict of interests arise and serving on Board
committees, all non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to
the effective direction of the Company. All non-executive
directors of the Company (including independent non-
executive directors) are appointed with a specific term of
three years which is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Company'’s articles of
association.
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The biographical details of the directors are set out
in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section under the “Report of the
Directors” of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors, representing at least one-third of the
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Board. One of the independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Yip Kai Yung, possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 to the date of this
annual report, the Board of the Company comprises the
following directors:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham (appointed on 3 July 2019)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Executive Directors
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung (Joint Managing Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (appointed on 26 June 2020)
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki

Mr. Poon Kan Young

Mr. Yip Kai Yung

Alternate Director

Dr. Zhang Wei
(alternate to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson)
(appointed on 3 July 2019)
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A list of the directors, their roles and functions and, in
particular whether they are independent non-executive
directors, is maintained on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and is updated as and when
required. The independent non-executive directors are
also identified in all corporate communications to the
shareholders of the Company that disclose the names of
directors.

All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Board)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman of the Board) together
with Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly own as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries.

Save for the information as disclosed in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report
and the business relationship between the Chairman
and the Deputy Chairman as disclosed above, there is
no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the directors and between
the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
was adopted on 22 February 2019 by the Board and the
Nomination Committee will review at least annually
whether board diversity can be achieved. A summary of
the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition,
board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service,
which form the measureable objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will also monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
review and recommend revisions of the Board Diversity
Policy (where appropriate) to the Board to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
diversity as at 31 March 2020 and considered that the
Board is characterised by diversity in terms of cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 February 2019 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of directors. The criteria and
process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company are set out in the Policy of Nomination
of Directors, which was adopted by the Board on 22
February 2019. A summary of the Policy of Nomination of
Directors is set out below.
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The Policy of Nomination of Directors
Purpose, scope and responsibilities:

The Policy of Nomination of Directors aims to set
out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company, to ensure that
all nominations of members of the Board are fair and
transparent in order to facilitate the constitution of the
Board with a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that is appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business and to ensure Board continuity
and appropriate leadership at Board level. The policy
applies to the directors and where applicable, members
of senior management and/or other persons proposed
for Board positions under the succession planning of the
Company. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and nomination of directors
to the Nomination Committee. Without prejudice to the
authority and duties of the Nomination Committee as set
out in its terms of reference, the ultimate responsibility
for selection and appointment of directors of the
Company rests with the entire Board.

Selection criteria:

o In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, the following factors, which are not
exhaustive, should be considered:

a. character and integrity;

b. accomplishment, experience and reputation
in the business and industry in which the
Company and its subsidiaries operate;

¢. commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries;
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d. qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

e. the potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board;

f.  the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company (as amended from time to time);

g. in case of a candidate for an independent
non-executive director of the Company, to
assess: (i) the independence of such candidate
with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-
executive directors as set out in Code Provision
A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
in the "Guidance for Boards and Directors”
published by the Stock Exchange; and

h. any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Nomination Committee or
the Board from time to time as appropriate.

o The appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board shall be made in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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Nomination procedures:

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may
select candidates for directorship. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee will, upon his/her own
motion or receipt of a nomination from a Board
member (as the case may be), convene a meeting of
the Nomination Committee or circulate a resolution
in writing to the members of the Nomination
Committee to consider the same in accordance
with the Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee.

For the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall
undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the
Board'’s consideration and approval.

For the re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation, for the proposed candidate(s)
to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

If a shareholder wants to propose a candidate
for prospective appointment to the Board to be
considered by the shareholders, he/she shall refer
to the “Procedures for Shareholder’s Nomination
of a Director”, which is available on the Company’s
website.

The nominated candidate will be asked to provide
the necessary personal information together with
his/her written consent to be appointed as a director
and to the public disclosure of his/her personal data
on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to his/her appointment.
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Chairman and Joint Managing Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson acts as the Chairman while
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung act as the
Joint Managing Directors. The roles of Chairman and
Joint Managing Directors are separated. The Board has
adopted a set of written terms setting out the roles and
duties of the Chairman and the Joint Managing Directors.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group. The Chairman should
ensure that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
With the support of the Joint Managing Directors and
senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, accurate,
clear, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.

The Joint Managing Directors focus on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. They are in charge of the Company’'s day-to-
day operations and management. The Joint Managing
Directors are also responsible for formulating the
organizational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments
and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his responsibilities under
the Listing Rules and relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Directors are encouraged to participate
in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The company secretary from time to time provides
the directors with updates on latest development and
changes to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A
summary of training received by the directors is as

follows:

NEZ202063831ALEE 2REEYH
SHEBEEERREURRENEHFMMAAME
RERE -EEESEIINWSENT

Training Areas

1Al E
Accounting/
Corporate Financial/
Governance/ Management
Updates on Laws, or Other

Rules & Regulations Professional Skills

LRER ke | 10t Y
BARFAGE FE
=M E Hth R
Non-executive Chairman EMITER
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BRBLE v v
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHEEE v v
(Deputy Chairman) (BIE/E)
Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham BOH S E (R20194F v v
(appointed on 3 July 2019) 7H3HEZ)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho Hitt=%4% v v
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun ML v v
(Joint Managing Director) (B fEEFEAETE)
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung TEERE v v
(Joint Managing Director) (B EEFELIE)
Independent Non-executive BIAFBTESE
Directors
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki i 5% 4 4
Mr. Poon Kang Young BRELE v 4
Mr. Yip Kai Yung BERREE v v
Alternate Director BEES
Dr. Zhang Wei (alternate to REELT (BERELLZ v v/

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson)
(appointed on 3 July 2019)

BFEE) (K2019%F
7H3HEZE)
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2020. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary, namely Mr. Kwok Wing Fai, is the
senior accounting manager of the Group. He has the day-
to-day knowledge of the affairs of the Company.

The company secretary reports to the Chairman of the
Board and plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that the Board policies and procedures are
duly followed. He is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and
facilitating the induction and professional development
of the directors. All directors could have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

The company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES
Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and the principal businesses
transacted include:

o Approving the forecast and budget of the Group;
o Approving interim and final results and reports;
o Determining payment of dividend; and

o Reviewing the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

° Approving the appointment of a non-executive
director and an alternate director.

Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all the
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
committee meetings, reasonable notice is given. The
date of each meeting is decided in advance to enable the
directors to attend the meeting in person.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s articles of association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established
on 22 February 2019. The Audit Committee comprises
four independent non-executive directors and Mr. Yip
Kai Yung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a partner or
former partner (within two years immediately prior to
the date of his appointment as a member of the Audit
Committee) of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s
existing external auditor. Members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

Mr. Yip Kai Yung* (Chairman of the committee)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen? (appointed on 26 June 2020)
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki*

Mr. Poon Kan Young*

# Independent Non-executive Director

The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

o Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

o Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, with the
assistance of the Risk Management Committee and
the outsourced internal audit function;
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o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

o Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

Three Audit Committee meetings were held during
the year ended 31 March 2020 and the major works
performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2019;

o Recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of external auditor for the year ended 31 March
2020; and

o Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
evaluating, establishing and maintaining effective
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 22 February 2019. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki*
(Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart*
Mr. Tai Sai Ho*
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen* (appointed on 26 June 2020)
Mr. Poon Kan Young*
Mr. Yip Kai Yung*

* Non-executive Director
#* Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

o Implementing and reviewing the Policy of
Nomination of Directors, including the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship;

o Reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship, in
accordance with the Policy for Nomination of
Directors;

o Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and disclosing
the Board Diversity Policy or summary of such policy
(including any measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the policy and the progress
on achieving those objectives) in the corporate
governance report in each annual report of the
Company.

REZEENTERHEUT:

s EREBNESRIAEK BEREEF
REEEMRMUTERIEBESRE
AWREFRZEA

o ZEOEFRIESISHRE - ABRAK
(BfEReE - A8 KRREHZ L)
WA A B S A D B B 13 K0S &
FHNEOESSREESR

s REESRARXVECAEFSEERT
EEESNAL IRBESAFEALE
FE=IRUBAESSRHESR

o FRADNARBUFHITESNE LM,

s HARFAESEAHEHZEUARELD
AES (LHRIFENESRAKE)EF
FFERMESERHER R

s RMIEBEBEXRESTABEILRALQF
BEFERNERELRREETHREESS
BMEZRTEHRAZBRBE (BRER
ERBEEMRENEATFEEERE
BZSEEMNER) -

ESBEERBIRAST 2019/2020 F ¥R

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R EiGiREE

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2020 and the major works
performed are as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o Making recommendation to the Board on the
proposed appointment of new non-executive
director and alternate director according to the
Policy of Nomination of Directors;

e Assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

o Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board Diversity Policy and the Policy of Nomination
of Directors are summarised in the “Board Diversity” and
“Appointment and Re-election of Directors” sections
above respectively. The nomination of new non-executive
director and alternate director during the year has
followed the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria as set out in the Policy of Nomination of
Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee
on 22 February 2019. Members of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Mr. Poon Kan Young* (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho*

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen* (appointed on 26 June 2020)
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki*

Mr. Yip Kai Yung*

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020

HE2020F3A31BLLFE - ERZESHET
TRXXE®E BITHEEIEOT:

MANEBTHRE  ABRAR

s REESREEARRIMEBRZEHFEAT
ESNRHEESONESTRLES

o FRALRABUFNITEZNEUM

e RIRDEEGEREFNZEINALF
ERTHRRBEAS LHERTH
BFE K

BNESEHEZ TILBE-

EEERESNLERRESREARED A
BER EX EFEREZ LI R[ESZE
EREZIZEH -REN REHMFNTES
RMrHESCERESRBBERAAREF R
ERAER .

FHERS

AATHR2019F 2822 L HMEE S -
MEESWRENT

BRREE (EEELE)

FHREE

CUR e o

BREREE" (R20206F6 526 H EZ )
A s B

g S e oy

* FHTES
fOBNFHTES



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R EiGiREE

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

o Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and the major
works performed are as follows:

o Making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of newly appointed non-executive
director and alternate director;

o Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
amount to be distributed to the executive directors,
senior management and other employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020; and

o Reviewing and determining the need for salary
adjustment for the executive directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group for
the year commencing 1 April 2020.
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Other Board Committees HthEFEEEE

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the EZGRTHEFERZEE REZEERT
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the MEESEHERSIN TRITUTESES

Remuneration Committee, the Board also established the =
following Board committee:
Name of Committee Composition of Committee Role and Function of Committee
ZEReEER EREZHEEK SREZABRRRE
Investment Committee Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart To handle the Group’s
REZESE (Chairman) investment decisions
FHEBEE (£EFE) REAEBBIRERE
Mr. Tai Sai Ho
HEREE
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun
i e
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung
TEERE
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee

Members

The attendance record of each director at annual general
meeting, Board and committee meetings held during the

year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

EERERAGHRHFRS

EESHFEEZ2020F3831HIEFEEITH
BRRBFAS EFEREETSENTHR
T

Annual Audit Nomination Remuneration Investment
General Board Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee
Meeting' Meeting" Meeting v Meeting" Meeting”  Meeting" V"
ENERe REZRT FHEAET HKRZAT
Name of Director EEk4 BREEAE EZETH - X - gV
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, BB L 0/1 4/4 N/A® N/A® N/AS N/A®
Payson* (Chairman) () ENERED AL TE AL TERe
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, FHEEE 1n 4/4 N/A2 22 33 N/A
Stewart* (Deputy (RIZE) TEmAL TER
Chairman)
Mr. Chung Sam Tin =N Sl 11 33 N/A N/AS N/AL N/AS
Abraham* V" TEmAL TE e TE e TEMAL
Mr. Tai Sai Ho* Bt REE 7 4/4 N/A2 212 33 N/A
TEmAe TERA
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun el i 17 4/4 N/A® N/A® N/AL N/A
(Joint Managing (BEZZE FER @A FEA TEA
Director) F Py
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung FEERE 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Joint Managing (BEZZE FER @A FEA TEA
Director) F Py
Professor Ho Richard ~ fUif &£ i%* 01 4/4 33 212 33 N/A
Yan Ki THERRL
Mr. Poon Kan Young*  EiRIR &£ on 3/4 33 212 33 N/AL
TER
Mr. Yip Kai Yung? EEARE! 1N 4/4 33 212 33 N/A2
@A
Dr. Zhang Wei " REELV N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA TER TER TER TEA
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Notes:

I The annual general meeting was held on 27 August 2019.
The auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
attended such meeting.

Il Four regular Board meetings were held during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

lll.  No Investment Committee meeting was held during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

IV.  Mr. Yip Kai Yung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

V. Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

VI.  Mr. Poon Kan Young is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

VIl. Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart is the Chairman of the
Investment Committee.

VIIl. Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham and Dr. Zhang Wei was
appointed as a non-executive director and an alternate
director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson respectively on 3 July

2019.
* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director
a The director was not a member of the relevant committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing effectiveness
of the systems at least annually. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are designed
to help achieving the Group’s business objectives by
providing reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and they are designed to
manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure.
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The Company adopted a risk management policy and
formed the Risk Management Committee chaired by the
Joint Managing Directors and with members comprising
the various senior staff members. Systems and procedures
are put in place to identify, evaluate, manage and
monitor the risks of different businesses and activities.
Regular monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems is mainly performed by each departments
who are required to conduct risk self-assessment and to
submit risk assessment results and action plans to the
Risk Management Committee. The Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee monitor and assess
the risk management systems and the risk management
issues. Review on the risk management and internal
control systems has to be performed at least annually
to assess the effectiveness of the systems in monitoring
and managing risks. The Company has not yet set up the
internal audit function as the Company considers it to
be more cost effective to engage external consultant to
perform such internal audit function.

The directors review monthly management reports on
the financial results. Monthly management meetings
are held to review progress of projects and business
performance against budgets and forecasts. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.

The Group regulates the handling and the dissemination
of inside information to the public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Joint Managing Directors and senior
management are delegated with responsibilities to
control and monitor the proper procedures on the
disclosure of inside information.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, has conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. Such review, in particular,
included the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions. The Board also engaged external
consultant to assist the Company in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems during the year ended 31 March
2020. No significant risk issues were identified and
appropriate measures have been taken to address the
identified areas for improvement. The Board considered
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group effective and adequate.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been applied, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.
The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of
this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy on 19 March
2019. According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall,
in recommending or declaring dividends, maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting the Group’s working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

The declaration of dividend(s) and/or the amount of
dividends (if any) that may be declared and distributed
to the shareholders is subject to the discretion of the
Board, the constitutional documents of the Company and
all applicable laws and regulations and the Board would
take into account the following factors of the Group: (i)
results of operations and earnings; (ii) general financial
conditions; (iii) cash flow situation; (iv) availability
of distributable profits; (v) business conditions and
strategies; (vi) future operations and earnings; (vii) cash
requirements; (viii) expected capital requirements and
expenditure plans; (ix) interests of the shareholders as a
whole; (x) any restrictions on declaration and/or payment
of dividends; and (xi) any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a
financial year or period as: (i) interim dividend; (ii) final
dividend; (iii) special dividend; and (iv) any distribution
of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.
Any final dividend for a financial year shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the
constitutional documents of the Company and applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will review the Dividend
Policy as appropriate from time to time.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the

1 B4 B % A
BE2020F3A31B L FE - AR AR

Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out  ZEEI 2 FHMEHIMT :
below:
HK$°000
FHET
Audit Services ER 1,480
Non-audit Services: I EXRTE
Reviewing the financial results and reports for EHEZE2019F9830H 1
the six months ended 30 September 2019 NERZHBEBERRE 528
Total Fok 2,008

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company serve as a
communication platform where the Board can maintain
a face-to-face dialogue with the shareholders and
investors. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the
general meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors. The Chairman of the
Board as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
or in their absence, other members of the Board or the
respective Board committees, will attend the annual
general meeting of the Company and be available to
answer questions from the shareholders and investors.
The external auditor of the Company will also be invited
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, notice of the
general meetings together with the shareholders circular
and other documents will be sent to the shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the annual general
meeting and at least 10 clear business days before the
extraordinary general meetings. Voting at annual general
meeting or other general meetings will be conducted by
way of a poll. The results of the poll will be published on
the day of shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(i)

(ii)

on the written requisition of any two or more
members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong (Office A,
20th Floor, Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office (Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company; or

on the written requisition of any one member
of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong (Office A,
20th Floor, Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office (Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
the meeting may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Nomination of Director

If a shareholder (the “Proposer”) wishes to nominate
a person (the “Candidate”) to stand for election as
a director at a general meeting of the Company, the
following documents shall be delivered to the company
secretary of the Company to the Company’s principal
office in Hong Kong (Office A, 20th Floor, Kings Wing
Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong):

(i) a written notice signed by the Proposer, who
must be duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting, of his/her intention to propose the
Candidate for election as a director;

(ii) a written notice signed by the Candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected as a director; and

(iii) biographical details of the Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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According to the Company’s articles of association,
the period for lodgment of the required documents
mentioned above will be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Upon receipt of the written notices from the Proposer
to propose the Candidate for election as a director
at the general meeting, the Company will publish an
announcement in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules or issue a supplementary circular.
The particulars of the Candidate will be included in
the announcement or supplementary circular of the
Company.

The Proposer must attend the relevant general meeting
in person to propose the Candidate (who may or may
not attend the meeting himself or herself). In the event
of the Candidate being appointed, his appointment will
remain subject to the Stock Exchange being satisfied as to
his suitability to act in the role.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no amendment
was made to the constitutional documents of the
Company. A copy of the latest version is available on the
websites of the Company (www.millionhope.com.hk) and
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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Shareholders’ and Other Stakeholders’ Enquiries

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders. Shareholders and other
stakeholders may address their enquiries and concerns to
the company secretary through the following channels:

Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Office A, 20th Floor., Kings Wing Plaza 1
3 On Kwan Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

By mail:

By email: office@millionhope.com.hk

By telephone: (852) 2693 0276

By fax: (852) 2602 5840

In addition, if shareholders have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend, they
can contact the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company using the details below:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8628

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.millionhope.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S
MESSAGE

On behalf of the Group, | am delighted to share our
second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report with our stakeholders. We are all currently
witness to profound changes which are affecting our
communities locally and across the globe, which are
shaping the way companies conduct their business.
In response, the Group is embracing these challenges
and are committed to finding innovative solutions to
integrating more sustainable practices into our business.

In collaboration with our business units, we worked
to foster a strong culture of sustainability awareness
across the Group. Through a collective effort, we have
made significant progress in the improvement of our
sustainability performance. Upgrades to our office
appliances and lighting fixtures helped to improve our
energy efficiency whilst regular reminders encouraged
resource-saving behavioural changes amongst our staff.

The wellbeing of our employees remains our top priority.
During the recent global pandemic, we worked diligently
to ensure our workplace was thoroughly disinfected and
provided our staff with hand sanitizer for their personal
use. Alongside their physical health and wellbeing, the
Group also continues to encourage personal career
development amongst our staff. Our well-established
training and development initiatives help to equip our
staff with the skills and knowledge necessary to carry out
their duties to the best of their abilities and aid in their
career development and personal growth.
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As the Group progresses along our sustainability journey,
we remain focused on the future as we continue to make
substantial progress in our sustainability performance.
We will continue to broaden our positive impacts
through innovation and will move forward as a purpose-
driven company.

Chuk Kin Lun
Joint Managing Director

ABOUT THIS REPORT
About the Group

In 1990, the Group was founded with aspirations of
providing innovative and effective solutions to clients’
aluminium design and manufacturing needs, and to
this day we continue to be guided by our client-focused
approach. As we approach our 20th anniversary as a
company, we remain committed to growing our business
from Hong Kong to the Mainland China and beyond by
drawing on our extensive knowledge base and expertise
to deliver quality aluminium design and fabrication
solutions.
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Our Vision
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We are responsive to the needs of our clients, committed to offering
innovative solutions and quality service to stay ahead in the industry
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Our Missions
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To manufacture and construct the finest curtain wall and windows in
Greater China

BEREERATEEBRINBSRBNIEE

Provide customers with system design, manufacturing, supply,
problem solving and advice services
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Our Core Values

B o RER

Innovative Solution — We keep up-to-date with the most innovative
manufacturing equipment and techniques

AIFNBART R -RMATEEERARMENRERBEREM

Excellence Service — We maintain high standards of workmanship,
quality control and strong commitment to customer service

SHNRE -EARSSEENTIZ EERFRYEFRENBREAS

Care — We take fully responsibility to our staff, clients and the
community

BE-ZMAYET FRFRUEEERSEE

Mutual Respect — We work together in a collaborative environment
based on trust, joint commitment and respect
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Reporting Scope and Standard

This ESG report has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix
27 (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) to the Listing Rules
issued by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEx"). This ESG report provides an overview of the
Group's ESG-related policies and management approach
to its sustainability issues, initiatives, and performance
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (the
“reporting year").

This ESG report covers the Group’s major operations in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The operation divisions
are listed below:
Business Units Location
Corporate Head Office
Fabrication Plant

Hong Kong
Huizhou, Mainland China

To aid readers in navigating the report content, a HKEx
ESG Reporting Guide content index is available on pages
75 to 80. We welcome and appreciate your feedback, if
you have any suggestions or comments please send them
to office@millionhope.com.hk.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To determine the most material ESG topics to be
disclosed in this ESG report, the Group has appointed an
independent consultant to complete a comprehensive
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment. The
sustainability disclosures of peer companies have been
reviewed to identify common industry disclosure practices
and an online staff survey was conducted to collect
feedback on our ESG-related strategies, initiatives, and
performance.
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The structured three-stage materiality assessment process T XRE—SHMBITRBLEAUTEER

undertaken is described in further detail in the chart By = B PR £X -
below:

Step 1: Identification
F—%

e A peer benchmarking exercise was conducted to review the ESG disclosure of industry
peers and determine the current disclosure level of the industry.

ETRFEENG RRERHRE A EREAFRNEEER  YRETHEMNRKREK

o

o Internal stakeholders were also invited to complete an online survey to rank the
importance of ESG topics to themselves and to the Group, respectively.
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Step 2: Prioritisation

BT BMERER

o Results from the peer benchmarking exercise were consolidated to develop a prioritised
list of potential material ESG issues for further validation.
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Step 3: Validation of Material Issues

F=ZY WMRBEXEE

e  The Group's senior management convened a meeting with the independent consultant
to confirm a finalised list of material Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) for disclosure.
AEESHREEBRBEVERNGHER BREABRENES ((MBBEYEER) MERE
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NURTURING OUR PEOPLE

An engaged workforce strengthens our position as a
desirable employer and attracts diverse talents which
enhances our ability to deliver on our business objectives.
We take great care to foster a working environment
which provides our staff with the necessary support
to nurture their career development, to promote
work-life balance, and to facilitate positive workplace
communication. To this end, we continue to promote a
working culture which is inclusive, collaborative, and safe
for everyone across the Group.
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A Positive Workplace

The Group constantly has an eye to the future and
continues to ensure our workforce pipeline is stocked
with skilled and experienced professionals. Our people-
oriented approach to making the Group a desirable
employer has led us to ensure our workplace is free
from any prejudice, discrimination, or harassment. We
support employment practices in line with the principles
of fairness and equal opportunity and have implemented
various measures to enhance our employment practices.
For instance, our Staff Handbook stipulates that the
recruitment of any new potential staff members is
conducted strictly based on relevant skills, qualifications,
and merit. Likewise, all career advancement proceedings
within the Group shall only take individual merits,
experience, and qualifications into account. We
reward our employees with competitive remuneration
packages and benefits, alongside the various employee
engagement activities such as our Company Annual
Dinner, birthday parties, and group hobby classes to
further encourage a healthy work-life balance.
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To ensure compliance with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements’, all new staff are required to
attend a mandatory orientation briefing to ensure that
our expectations of acceptable professional conduct are
understood across the Group.

During the reporting year, there were no non-compliance
cases relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

Training and Development

We equip our staff with the opportunities to learn
relevant skills and improve their professional knowledge
in aid of their career development and personal growth.
Recognising that individual career paths may differ, our
employee training and development strategy includes
an annual performance assessment to identify specific
areas of improvement and to help determine any
relevant training opportunities to facilitate professional
growth. This year, our internal training initiatives
included training sessions on a range of topics, covering
facade engineering, occupational health and safety,
environmental practices, and maintenance works. To
supplement our internal training programme, the Group
also offers an external training sponsorship initiative to
support staff in their personal career development.

ABRNEMBEREEREERE KM
BHERABHE TS MARIE - UHERE
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B oE RS N B BT E AR R S I E L
RESZERE NAFE  RMANWAIMEIET
BRE-RIEEZIRE BESBEIRE
BERERZE2 REREARREIR -BH
ZABDIFIGE - NEBIT RSN EPIENE DD
HE XFETHEABERRE-

! Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57); the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the listing document
of the Company dated 28 February 2019 - “Listing By Way Of Introduction on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” (the “Listing Document”).

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf

BEBRERR CEREEH) (F57F)  (hEARANE ([HhE ) L% - EZF5 F2RAARHER2019F2
B2AZET X - TUNRBERAEEBHERGAAERARDERLT] (LHXH W IEEHRE] —6-
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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Occupational Health and Safety

We are uncompromising when it comes to the health
and safety of our staff and subcontractors. The Group
has implemented proactive measures to minimise
potential occupational health and safety (“OHS")
hazards throughout our operations. To ensure our
safety measures are effective and up to date our Group-
level OHS policy is reviewed on an annual basis. The
practical implementation and monitoring of our safety
plans are managed by our Site Safety Management
Committee, who are also responsible for the review of
relevant accident statistics and trends to recommend any
improvements to our safety measures.

Strict protocols are in place at all our project sites to
safeguard everyone within the premises. All new staff
are required to attend a standard OHS induction which
covers the use of protective equipment, emergency
protocol, first-aid facilities, and accident reporting
procedures. Before any site workers are permitted
onto our project sites, the completion of an additional
safety training course is required along with proof of
valid safety certifications such as the “Green Card”
for construction work. To renew and reinforce safety
knowledge and awareness at our project sites, OHS
reminder posters, hazard and warning signs, and
emergency rescue procedures are prominently displayed
throughout.

At our construction projects in the PRC, detailed safety
inspection track records are kept by the Safety Officer
to ensure any identified issues are comprehensively
rectified in a timely manner. Additionally, any potential
contractors or subcontractors are required to fully adhere
to our OHS policy and established safety plan if engaged.
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During the recent global health crisis, we made the REHZMREE/EF RFABEENEER
health and safety of our employees our top priority. We  ZZ2BRE Bty - R BEEE5EREY
engaged a professional cleaning service to thoroughly KM IT/ESAMETHRES WEBEXFRE
disinfect our workspace and procured hand sanitizer for EBIFER-XFATABAIAZAOEHRE
staff use. We also placed a floor mat at the entrance (EEES) - EREEE NG TAIRE -

to our office, which is regularly sanitized, to allow

employees to wipe their shoes before entering the

premises.

Office Disinfection and Hand Sanitizer
WAEHZERAFH

During the reporting year, we strictly complied with the  HRBEFE RMABKETHREBRPEHHE
relevant laws and regulations? in Hong Kong and the EBIAERZER? HMEBRIAIRBERERE
PRC, there were no confirmed cases of non-compliance ~ ZHEREH-

relating to OHS.

2 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509); the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 59); Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases. For more
details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the Listing Document.
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEEBTRA (BEZERBREL) (F5098) ; (EFEHGD) (F59%8) ; (PEBXFERAE) - EZFHE  F2H
XN TEEME] —6f-
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRIZG-H B8R EGIRES

Labour Standards

The Group has set up rigorous recruitment procedures
to strictly prohibit the employment of children and
forced labour in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations®. All potential applicants for employment
at our PRC operations are required to provide relevant
identification documents and proof of age, which are
carefully examined by our Human Resources Department
prior to confirmation of employment. The Group
strictly prohibits any discriminatory actions which may
inhibit employee freedoms, which include, but are not
limited to, the retention of identify cards or passports,
impounding wages, and/or forced overtime.

Anti-Corruption

In upholding the Group’s high ethical standards, all
employees must strictly comply with relevant anti-
corruption and other related policies as outlined in the
Staff Code of Conduct. The Group has zero tolerance for
all forms of corruption, bribery, and misconduct and fully
complies with relevant laws and applicable legislation®.
To ensure we remain updated and fully understand
the details of anti-corruption legislation and practices,
speakers from the Independent Commission Against
Corruption are invited to conduct a training session for
new staff members as part of their entry orientation.

SIR#E
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BIEIIE —# o

3 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57); the Labour Law of the PRC; the Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC. For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the

Listing Document.

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEETRRN CEREHGD) (F57F)  (PELEE) (TEZLERETIRE) - ESHE F2H LT XHNIE

EME| -

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf

4 Including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). For more details, please refer to the

Regulatory Overview section in the Listing Document.

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEEBTRRN BFLEHEEREAD (8201F) - EZFE F2HA LT XANEEHRE | —6-
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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We encourage all staff to raise their concerns
or suspicions of any misconduct, malpractice, or
irregularities. Our whistleblowing policy is well-
integrated into our standard practices and procedures
to ensure whistle-blowers have the freedom to report
grievances without fear of reprisal. Employees at all levels
may raise concerns regarding improper behaviour to the
Human Resources Department or supervisor, all such cases
are treated confidentially.

During the reporting period, there were no confirmed
cases of non-compliance with the local or national anti-
corruption regulation.

CHERISHING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is fully committed to enhancing our
operations to fulfil our present needs without
compromising our future. The Group values sustainable
long-term planning and environmental stewardship
through enhanced energy efficiency, reduced emissions,
resource conservation, and heightened environmental
awareness. In line with this commitment, the Group has
implemented an in-house Environmental Management
policy and follows the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System to guide our approach to
environmental issues and ensure compliance with
relevant environmental laws and regulations®. To further
cultivate an internal sustainability culture, we regularly
organise activities such as coastal clean-up outings with
our employees. We have also installed a designated
greening area at our fabrication plant, which consists of a
small area surrounded by a variety of trees and foliage.

EMSBAEREHEANFETR BERZE
RITRREBEEINEE - BANERBRD A
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REBH IR EEBRRNBER T INREE -
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BOoBHERRRESRARE AEEERT
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—RABEE - flu g ERRMEE - AT R
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5 Including but not limited to: Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.311); Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400);
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354); the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC; the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution; the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment; the Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC. For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the Listing

Document.

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEBTFRN (ZRFREFEG) (F3NE)  (RZFEFURG) (5F4008) ; CEMEERG) (%#354F) ; (FEER
BREE)  (PRENTREEBE) (PRREZETER) (FESHHNERE) - ESHE F2R L XHNIE

EHE] -

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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Energy Consumption and Emissions

To further push our energy efficiency and emission
reduction initiatives, we work to promote prudent
energy consumption and environmental awareness at
every level of our business. At our offices, we procured
energy efficient electrical appliances with the Grade 1
Energy Label, replaced obsolete lighting fixtures with
LED lights, and installed automatic timers for all lights
and air-conditioning units to avoid unnecessary energy
use. To help remind our staff to do their part in reducing
energy consumption through everyday actions, we have
set up reminder posters near power switches.

Our fabrication plant carefully monitors and tracks the
monthly consumption of water, energy, and paper to
seek out opportunities to further reduce our carbon
footprint. Through our data, we found an opportunity
to embrace the benefits of energy optimisation
presented by renewable technologies, and as a result,
a photovoltaic (“PV") panel system has been installed
on our dormitory building roof. Furthermore, we
continue to develop our annual environmental training
programmes in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the Energy Conservation Law of the
PRC.
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At our Hong Kong operations, we have strict control
on air pollutants and noxious emissions arising from
our installation works to ensure compliance with
Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311). We also
encouraged our staff to raise their own sustainability
awareness by arranging a trip to participate in the “Lai
Chi Wo! Village Fest” which promotes the rediscovery
of nature by learning about the benefits of a mutually
supportive relationship between urban and rural areas.
The event taught participants to incorporate more
sustainable practices into everyday life and a deeper
understanding of the rural lifestyle.

GHG INTENSITY®

Tonnes of CO2e/FTE
WM_StREE  2BES

BMETBEBIE BIREFREIREME
ENZERSRIREEHN UBRRFS (Z
RIBRERERG) (B3INE) -HMTEBZR
B2 HE [ H KR Wo | FEE | IRITREBET
EeHEBSNTHERRESE WETEBT
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SHAHEZRERBAZ AEEE  WIF
HENEFTANT 8

Colleagues at the “Lai Chi Wo!
Village Fest”
7 [#H R Wo | 1486 | a6 F
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1.7 (o> (@j 3.7

ENERGY INTENSITY?

‘000 kWh/FTE
TETERE 2BES )

Equals to total greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions generated by fuel consumption in fleet and electricity

consumption divided by full-time employees (“FTE”) in Hong Kong and PRC.
HERERREEREREEEEANEZRB ([REREBR D FNAERUEERTENZRES (2KER]) -
7 Equals to total energy consumption divided by FTE in Hong Kong and PRC.

HMERERLERUTBRTENEZHES -
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Waste Management

The Group recognises the negative impacts landfills
and waste continue to have on our environment. It
is becoming increasingly important for businesses to
efficiently manage their waste generation and disposal.
Through various initiatives implemented in our daily
operations, we promote a “three-Rs” culture of reduce,
reuse, and recycle amongst our employees. All office staff
are reminded to choose two-sided printing and reuse
scrap paper whenever possible, whilst advanced multi-
function printers help to further minimise unnecessary
use of paper. Waste Management Guidelines at our
fabrication plant lay out waste reduction principles to
encourage staff to be more environmentally mindful.
To facilitate daily application of these principles at the
operational level, we also provide implementation
guidance on waste collection, segregation, storage,
and disposal. To treat and recycle the water runoff
from washing our company fleet, we have installed a
wastewater treatment system at our fabrication plant,
minimising our negative environmental impacts and
reducing water consumption.

We aim to mitigate the potential impacts of hazardous
waste and take all necessary precautions to handle
and manage it properly. Hazardous chemical wastes
are collected separately and stored in designated areas
for proper processing by qualified licensed external
contractors. We strictly comply with all relevant laws and
regulations related to the handling of any hazardous
wastes generated across our operations.

During the reporting period, there were no significant
non-compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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MANAGING OUR VALUE CHAIN

Supply Chain Management

Our suppliers and subcontractors play a key role
in enabling the effective implementation of our
sustainability practices and facilitate the success of
our business. While selecting potential suppliers and
subcontractors, we will engage those who share our
dedication to sustainable practices, service excellence,
product responsibility, and business ethics. We carefully
assess potential suppliers and subcontractors through
a set of criteria which include factors such as technical
capability, relevant credentials, environmental
performance, and tender price.

To ensure that our sustainability guidelines are followed,
and the quality of products and services are up to
our expectations, we conduct regular reviews on our
approved list of over 270 suppliers and subcontractors.
Suppliers who underperform or violate relevant
environmental regulations are required to provide
detailed justifications and must undertake improvement
evaluations to rectify any problem areas.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020
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Our fabrication plant has established its own Supplier
and Contractor Environmental Management Guidelines,
which stipulates specific expectations for proper
environmental management and the mechanisms for
periodic evaluations and annual factory visits.

Responsible Services

We strive to continue building upon our high-quality
organisational reputation through our unwavering
commitment to excellence and customer satisfaction. Our
quality assurance policies were developed with reference
to industry best practices and relevant regulations.

To further strengthen our internal dedication to quality,
we have adopted the international standard ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management System and developed
our own Quality and Environmental Management System
Handbook to disseminate the Group’s policy objectives,
implementation procedures, and communication
channels across our operations.
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The Group also completes regular internal checks to
ensure we comply with relevant laws and regulations,
the specific procedures of these checks are laid out in our
Quality Inspection Handbook, which is made available
to all relevant staff. Inspections are also carried out for
our key suppliers of raw materials, such as glass. Through
our quality assurance process, qualified quality control
staff conduct site inspections during the glass fabrication
process to ensure the quality of the raw material is up to
our high standards before delivery.

Ensuring the confidentiality of all personal data and
information collected from our customers is critical in
maintaining our reputation and establishing the trust
which underpins the Group’s continued success. Our
Employee Handbook clearly states all employees are
required to adhere to our data confidentiality protocols,
which ensure all personal data is handled in a safe
and secure manner. To supplement our data security
measures, all project tender documents must include
a Non-disclosure Agreement, and all unsuccessful
tender documents are destroyed within 6 months after
submission.

During the reporting year, there were no reported cases
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations®.
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8 Including but not limited to: Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486), the Product Quality Law of the PRC.

BREEFRRN : (BAER (AR FRA) (55486F) - (FEE
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CARING FOR COMMUNITY

The Group strives to extend our care to the wider
communities in which we operate. We continued to
leverage our resources to help maximise our positive
impacts on the community through volunteering and
collaboration with non-governmental organisations
("NGO") and social enterprises in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Community Contribution

The Group is passionate about supporting NGOs and
other charitable organisations through volunteering,
advocacy and education initiatives. This year, the Group
supported a global anti-AIDS Campaign organised by the
Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF (“UNICEF HK"). One
event organised to support this campaign was the UNICEF
HK Charity Run 2019 which aimed to raise awareness
and help to gather funds for those who are affected by
AIDS. Unfortunately, due to unforeseen circumstances
the event was cancelled. However, that did not dampen
our spirit of giving. Despite the cancellation, the Group
donated more than HK$6,000 to UNICEF HK for this
worthy cause.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

ROBEHE

HKEx KPI The Group 2019-2020
FEEXHMREBRNER FEKE20195F F20205F
Environmental
- $: 1
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data’
i ES R AHR R RS
— NOx Tonnes 0.14
—RAY Mg
- SOx Tonnes 0.0004
— A Mg
- PM Tonnes 0.007
—EN T U
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
DEREAINERER
Direct emissions Tonnes of COze 81.8
(Scope 1) W _EtREE
BEEHER (SE1)
Energy indirect Tonnes of COze 314.1
emissions (Scope 2) W _EtmEE
BE IR 8 432 Bk AR
(£EE2)
- Total Tonnes of COze 395.9
—-RE WBo—EtmEE
— Intensity Tonnes of COze/FTE 1.7
—-EBE Wo—EtmEE
2HES
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity"
FEEREFREEVRERER"
- Total Tonnes 43.4
-8 M
— Intensity Tonnes/FTE 0.2
—-EE W, 2RES
9 NOx and PM are confined to our operations in Mainland China.

AN REIHFERREMRPE AN 2 EH -

ZHBEERREFARPER M2 -

This data is confined to our operations in Mainland China.
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HKEx KPI The Group 2019-2020
TR HMAEHENER XK E2019F F20205F
Environmental
b3}
A2.1 Energy consumption by type
REANB DGR EE
Total direct energy ‘000 kwh 276.7
consumption T8+ R B
BERERARE ‘000 kWh/FTE 1.2
- | ’
ot FETFREE
- 2HES
- intensity
~mE
Total indirect ‘000 kWh 599.8
energy consumption FEF &
(‘I’“rtd_‘a_:e;j '000 kWh/FTE 2.6
e, FEFEE
BiEEREKEE 2BES
(BE
- total
e
— intensity
~ZE
Diesel oil ‘000 kWh 219.5
L FEF R
- Z‘;' 000 KWh/FTE 0.9
L TETRE,
- intensity 2BES
~ B
Petrol ‘000 kWh 57.2
UM T8 F b
B t;t;' 000 kWH/FTE 0.2
R FERTREE
— intensity 2RES
-BE
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HKEx KPI The Group 2019-2020
FEEXHMREBRNER XK E20195FE F20205F
Social
e
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type Male Female
REREFENSMERAR S i
Full-time No. of people 186 49
X AH
Part-time No. of people 0 0
FR AH
Total workforce by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
RERENDNSHES AR 308k AT 30Z505% 508% BA £
Full-time No. of people 42 139 54
X AH
Total workforce by geographical region Hong Kong Mainland China
RHESSHERAER BiE A i
Full-time No. of people 119 116
X AB
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
BURE D HNEERKLL R E:Y o3
% 19.9 42.9
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
RERANBSHERRRLLE 3088 LA T 30&505% 508% KA £
% 54.8 20.9 1.1
Employee turnover rate by geographical Hong Kong Mainland China
region BE A it
RbESSHERIRKILE
% 8.4 414
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HKEx KPI The Group 2019-2020
FEEXHMREBRNER FEKE20195F F20205F
Social
i
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by employee category and gender
RERNIRENBSHERZIESLL
By employee category Hong Kong Mainland China
RERERAS g8 A E A i
General % 15 100
EEET
Middle managers % 0 100
hREEE
Senior managers % 0 90
SREERE
By gender
RHENE S
Male % 14 98.8
S
Female % 53 100
7
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HKEx KPI The Group 2019-2020
FEEXHMREBRNER | XK E20195FE F20205F
Social
e
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by employee category and gender
RERNIERMNBSHNESRERTERZIINFEYRER
By employee category Hong Kong Mainland China
RERENES BB A i
General Hours 2.6 12
EWBET INEE
Middle managers Hours 0 8
PAREEE NEF
Senior managers Hours 0 15.9
BREEE AN
By gender
RENE S
Male Hours 2.2 11.3
E:Y NEF
Female Hours 2.3 11.9
7 AN
B7.1 Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
HHEFRERHECFSHRSHDRGBE
Total Cases 0
EQES S8
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX EEBXIM(BER -HERELARE
&5 REFES]

HKEx KPI
FEEBXH Page Number/

FrERS@#E Description Remarks
WiER AE HiE e

A. Environmental

RIR
A1 Emissions A1 General disclosure 62-66
B4 —REE

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective 70
emissions data

R ERABEREE

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and 70
intensity
BERERINEREE

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity | Due to the
FEEEERENREREE business nature
of the Group,
this KPI is
considered not
material
220N TS
BUEER  ZE
REVERWR
RAFEKR
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and 70
intensity
FFELEEREVREEREE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions 62-66

and results achieved

BRI ENRERERIEHR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- 62-63
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

R EBEEREZEEYNF L B HEES
MERIRNERERIEHRR
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HKEx KPI
ERXS
PR @ i
WiEM

Description
AE

Page Number/
Remarks

B R

products

R mrABEMENEE

A. Environmental
BER
A2 Use of Resources | A2 General disclosure 62-66
BERERA —RiEE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by 70
type in total and intensity
REHESNEER SBEEEREEEER
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Due to the
BEKERBE business nature
of the Group,
this KPI is
considered not
material
MAAEERE
BUE LR ZE
BREYERERR
RIFTEKR
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives 62-63
and results achieved
HitgeRER M AT B RIEHR
A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water 65
efficiency initiatives and results achieved
HMSREGE AR E AT B EAREE UREAA
K gat IR FIEHR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Due to the

business nature
of the Group,
this KPI is
considered not
material
ARAEE
BUEER =2
REVIEEESR
ARAFEKXR
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HKEx KPI
FEXH
PR @ i
WiEW

Description

(N E

Page Number/
Remarks

BB R

A. Environmental
RiE
A3 The Environment | A3 General disclosure 64-65
and Natural —RIEE
R:s:urces . A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of 64-65
RIERRAAER o ;
activities on the environment and natural
resources and actions taken to manage them
BB EHHRBERAARERNEAZER
KEEEERTYENTE
B. Social
g -4
Employment and Labour Practices
BREERBIER
B1 Employment B1 General disclosure 56-62
EE —RIEE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, 72-74
age group and geographical region
MR- EEEE FRANRTESSWES
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 72
and geographical region
BMER - FERARRBEE S WEE R AR

E=SEBEIERBIIRAS 2019/2020 F#R
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employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
W EHRREANEE AR E T RASIE T

HKEx KPI
EEXS Page Number/
FrRAS#E Description Remarks
WigH AE HS fisE
B. Social
it
B2 Health and Safety | B2 General disclosure 60-62
REHEZZ —RIE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 60-62
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored
B TR B R R EEZ 218 LR EEH
TRESERE
B3 Development and | B3 General disclosure 58-59
Training —RE
=3
R R B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by gender 73
and employee category
BEBIREESEMNESNZIEET DL
B3.2 Average training hours completed per 74
employee by gender and employee category
RUBIREEERNSSNEEREETHZIINF
HRF
B4 Labour Standards | B4 General disclosure 61
4 TR —RIE
B4.1 Description of measures to review 61
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HKEx KPI
EBES Page Number/
FrRA##E Description Remarks
WigE AE HS fisE
B. Social
i -4
Operating Practices
EERH
B5 Supply Chain B5 General disclosure 66-67
Management —RIEE
REREE B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 66-67
suppliers, number of suppliers where and
how the practices are being implemented and
monitored
wal A B RS A ER VIEN mEH T BB
WEEBHE UREEENNATRERGE
B6 Product B6 General disclosure 67-68
Responsibility —RIEE
EREE cea T ; -
. escription of quality assurance process and 67-68
recall procedures
HiEEREBREREMBKER
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 68
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored
BIOEEEERRERALBEBER  UREEHT
RERFE
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HKEx KPI
EEXS Page Number/
FrRAS#E Description Remarks
WigH AE HS fisE
B. Social
it
B7 Anti-corruption B7 General disclosure 61
RES —RiEE

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 62
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases
REEHEHBETAREEERBLCEENE
TR E RFRER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 61-62
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

M EEE R BRERF  URARSITRESR

Tk
Operating Practices
ZERA
B8 Community B8 General disclosure 69
Investment —RIEE
HBRE B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 69
EXrEEERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area 69
EETHEREBAER
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the
design, supply and installation of facade and curtain
walls systems, with a focus on curtain walls, aluminium
windows and doors. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review on the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), including the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement (on pages 7 to 10), Operations
Review (on pages 11 to 15), Financial Review (on pages
16 to 20) and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 March 2020 using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights (on page
6) of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management
are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save for the information as disclosed in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements, there are no
material events affecting the Group that have occurred
after the year end date.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 117.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 March 2020 amounting to HK$8,727,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the branch register
of members in Hong Kong and the principal register
of members in the Cayman Islands on 3 September
2020. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 15
September 2020 following approval at the annual
general meeting scheduled to be held on 25 August 2020
and shall be paid out of the Company’s other reserves
account.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
120.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the articles of association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits
and reserves of the Company lawfully available for
distribution including other reserves. Dividends may also
be declared and paid out of other reserves account of
the Company subject to a solvency test (i.e. immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company must be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business) as set out in section 34(2) of the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2020 comprised the
aggregate of other reserves and accumulated profit of
HK$314,220,000 (31 March 2019: HK$292,079,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group is committed to protecting the environment,
fulfilling social responsibility and promoting employee
benefits and development to achieve sustainable growth
of its business.

For more details of the Group’s performances in
environmental and social aspects, please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section
of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed in complying with the relevant
laws and regulations related to its business operations in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Sufficient resources
and training have been provided to employees to ensure
the on-going compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that maintaining good relationship
with all stakeholders is the key to the sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group considers human capital the most valuable
asset for the Group, therefore, we provide competitive
remuneration packages, training programmes, and staff
engagement activities to attract, nurture and retain
talents and employees.

The Group maintains stable and long-term relationship
with business partners including customers, suppliers and
subcontractors, which brings benefits to the quality of
the Group's services and helps the Group to secure new
projects.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 March 2020 and there
has been no issue or exercise of any convertible securities,
warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham (appointed on 3 July 2019)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Executive Directors
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung (Joint Managing Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (appointed on 26 June 2020)
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki

Mr. Poon Kan Young

Mr. Yip Kai Yung

Alternate Director

Dr. Zhang Wei
(alternate to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson)
(appointed on 3 July 2019)
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In accordance with article 16.19 of the Company’'s
articles of association, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr.
Lee Cheuk Hung and Mr. Yip Kai Yung shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Pursuant to article 16.2 of the Company's
articles of association, Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, who was
appointed by the Board on 26 June 2020, shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the above
retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
remaining directors of the Company continue in office.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company's circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020

REBAQATRZESBERMAE16.19F &
BALE ZTHHEAEREXRELEERERR
REFAS IHERT REAQARAZAGE
RAAIZE16.2(F  BREZFRLE (HRA202056
F26HEEEESZR) BRERRREBFKE
FRE-FIAELMEREESHYFEERLER
REERRBEFAS LEREFT -FIAEALQT
BTESEESR T

BREERFEFAELERETCES H
BEAQNAJEEMHBELXRT LAEET
AR—FRREMRMEE CEERERN)
ZIRBER -

RARRERAFHR - HFLZBRA &H
ARAEERREBFAEFSHEHEREEN
HAER -



DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out in note 12(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
the emoluments of the senior management, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
below and include three of the five highest paid
individuals analysis presented in note 12(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, fell within the
following bands:
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EShERMS

B ZE2020F3A31BHLEE -EHEESHNE
ZHBHIRNGEE M BEBRRMT12) - BZE
2020F3A31MBLFE SREEE 2H M
(HERFRENR TX EERaNEEERE
Bl —& EREEREEMBERRHTE12(b)
EHRNEEESHFALINAN=ZBAL)F
AT 4R

Number of Individuals

AR
Emoluments of 2020 2019
Senior Management by Bands EREEBEZHFHAR 20205 20195
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 JTt £ 1,500,000/& JT 6 6
UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION BELETHHRNE13.51B(1)EHE

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of the directors of the
Company are set out below:

(i) Mr. Yip Kai Yung has become a fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

(ii) Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki has been appointed as
a member of the Board of Governors of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University from January 2020 until August
2022.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 77, was appointed
as a non-executive director and the Chairman of the
Company on 9 August 2018. Mr. Cha has extensive
experience in property development. Mr. Cha is the non-
executive chairman of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 896) (“Hanison”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company before the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange in March 2019. He is the chairman and
executive director of HKR International Limited (Stock
code: 480) (“HKRI”). Mr. Cha is an independent non-
executive director of New World Development Company
Limited (Stock code: 17) (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (Stock code: 2778) (“CREIT"))
and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited (owner
and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a
director of a number of public and private companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. During the period from
3 October 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr Cha was an
independent non-executive director of Bay Area Gold
Group Limited (formerly known as Munsun Capital Group
Limited) (Stock code: 1194) (“BAGGL"). The securities of
Hanison, HKRI, NWDCL, CREIT and BAGGL are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha holds an
honorary doctorate degree of Social Science from City
University of Hong Kong. He is a Justice of the Peace.
He is a member of One Country Two Systems Research
Institute Limited, a governing board member of China-
United States Exchange Foundation, a board member of
the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, the
chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation,
a trustee of Sang Ma Trust Fund and an honorary trustee
of Oregon State University Foundation. Mr. Cha is also a
director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”),
CCM Capital Corporation (“CCM Capital”) and LBJ
Regents Limited (“LBJ”), and the executive chairman of
Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”). Each of CCM Trust, CCM
Capital, LBJ and Mingly is a shareholder of the Company
discloseable under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO").
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 74, was appointed
as a director of the Company on 20 February 2018, and
designated as a non-executive director and appointed
as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on 9 August
2018. He also serves as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, and the
chairman of the Investment Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong has been an executive director and managing
director of Hanison since 2001. Mr. Wong was a director
of several listed companies and a director of HKR
until his resignation in December 2001. The securities
of Hanison and HKRI are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also a director of all
the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong has extensive
experience in the construction and real estate fields.
Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree in science from San
Diego State University and a master degree of science in
civil engineering from Carnegie-Mellon University in the
United States of America. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham, aged 74, was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 3 July
2019. Mr. Chung is a certified public accountant, fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 45 years extensive
experience in financial management and property
development in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung has been an
executive director of HKRI since 1994 and is also a
director of some subsidiaries of HKRI. Mr. Chung is
currently the head of finance and group operations
overseeing HKRI's finance, accounting, tax, insurance,
information technology functions, all operating units in
Discovery Bay and hospitality operation. The securities of
HKRI are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 68, was appointed as a director of
the Company on 20 February 2018, and designated as
a non-executive director of the Company on 9 August
2018. He also serves as a member of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tai has been an
executive director and the general manager of Hanison
since 2001. The securities of Hanison are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tai is also a
director of all subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tai has
extensive experience in public and private sectors of the
building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong.
Mr. Tai holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering from
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan, a master
degree in construction management from University of
New South Wales in Australia and a master degree in
business administration from Asia International Open
University in Macau (now known as City University of
Macau). Mr. Tai is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 69, was appointed as an
executive director and Joint Managing Director of the
Company on 9 August 2018. Mr. Chuk also serves as a
member of the Investment Committee of the Company
and is also a director of all subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Chuk was a director of the construction division, interior
and renovation division and building materials division of
Hanison from 2006 until his resignation upon or before
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange in March 2019. The securities of
Hanison are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chuk has
extensive experience in planning, estimating, tendering
and quantity surveying in the public and private sectors
of the building and civil engineering industries in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil
engineering and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 54, was appointed as an
executive director and Joint Managing Director of the
Company on 9 August 2018. Mr. Lee joined the Group
since 1998 and is also a director of all subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Lee also serves as a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee was a director of
the building materials division of Hanison from 2009
until his resignation upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in March
2019. The securities of Hanison are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee has comprehensive
experience in the building industry in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lee holds a certificate in mechanical engineering from
Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute (now known as IVE (Lee
Wai Lee)).
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Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee of the Company on 26 June
2020. Mr. Chau graduated from Xiamen University in
the People’s Republic of China in August 1968 with a
bachelor’'s degree in Chinese language and literature.
He is currently a Standing Committee Member of the
Thirteenth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, and the Eleventh
honorary consultant of the Hong Kong Federation of
Fujian Association. Mr. Chau is awarded with a Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) and Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in July 2010 and July 2016, respectively. Mr. Chau
is currently an executive director and the chairman of
the board of directors of ELL Environmental Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1395) (“ELL"), an independent non-
executive director of Good Resources Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 109) (“Good Resources”), Redco Properties
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1622) (“Redco Group”), Come
Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 794) (“Come
Sure”), and Hang Pin Living Technology Company Limited
(formerly known as Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited)
(Stock Code: 1682) (“HP Living”). He was a non-executive
director and the honorary chairman of the board of
directors of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (Stock
Code: 651) (“China Ocean Ind”) from 23 June 2015 to 1
December 2019. The securities of ELL, Good Resources,
Redco Group, Come Sure, HP Living and China Ocean Ind
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, aged 68, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company and as
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Professor Ho holds the
degree of bachelor of science with distinction in
agricultural economics from the University of Hawaii in
the United States of America, and master of science in
agricultural economics and doctor of philosophy from
the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States
of America. Professor Ho joined City University of Hong
Kong in 1990 and retired in 2013. During his 23 years
of service at City University of Hong Kong, Professor Ho
held various academic and senior administrative positions
including Chair Professor of Finance, Head of Economics
and Finance Department, Dean of the Business Faculty,
Vice President, Provost, and Acting President. Professor
Ho has also served as an independent non-executive
director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited since 2007
and is a Justice of the Peace. He is also the awardee of
the 2012 Hong Kong Fulbright Distinguished Scholar
to US. Professor Ho has a rich record of public service
including membership in Process Review Panel of the
Securities & Futures Commission, Securities & Futures
Appeals Tribunal, Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries & Conditions of Service, University Grants
Committee, and Energy Advisory Committee. Professor
Ho has been appointed as a member of the Board of
Governors of Hong Kong Shue Yan University from
January 2020 until August 2022.
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Mr. Poon Kan Young, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and as a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Poon has over 40 years of experience as
a quantity surveyor in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon became
a partner of Langdon Every and Seah, a construction
cost consultancy firm, in 1988, and after the merger
of the firm with Arcadis, an international natural and
built asset design and consultancy firm, Mr. Poon was
responsible for the operations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. In July 2016, he became the chief executive
at executive director level of Arcadis Asia and was
responsible for all operations in Asia. After retiring from
Arcadis in December 2016, Mr. Poon established his own
consultancy firm, LESK Solutions Co. Limited, and has
been the managing director since then. Mr. Poon holds
a higher diploma in surveying (quantity surveying) from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University), a master of philosophy
from The University of Hong Kong, and a postgraduate
diploma in information technology from The University
of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Mr. Poon is registered as a Registered
Professional Surveyor in the Quantity Surveying Division
with the Surveyors Registration Board of Hong Kong, and
is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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Mr. Yip Kai Yung, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Company and as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yip holds the general
certificates of education examination at ordinary level
and advanced level issued by the University of London
and the general certificates of education at ordinary
level and advanced level at Hong Kong issued by the
Associated Examining Board. Mr. Yip is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Yip has over 30 years of
experience in the financial audit industry in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. He worked in a Certified
Public Accountants firm in Hong Kong from August
1977 to November 1990, and joined Kwan Wong Tan
& Fong, a Certified Public Accountants firm in Hong
Kong, as a manager in the audit department in April
1992. Kwan Wong Tan & Fong merged with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in August 1997. Mr. Yip left Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as a partner in May 2011. From June
2011 to March 2013, Mr. Yip was a director of another
Certified Public Accountants firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yip
established his own Certified Public Accountants firm
as a sole proprietor in December 2012 and has been a
consultant of such firm since January 2017.
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Dr. Zhang Wei, aged 65, was appointed as an alternate
director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, the non-executive
Chairman of the Company, with effect from 3 July 2019.
Dr. Zhang is currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Mingly. Mingly is a shareholder of
the Company discloseable under Part XV of the SFO.
Dr. Zhang is an independent non-executive director of
Dadi International Group Limited (Stock Code: 8130)
("DIGL"), a non-executive director and an alternate
director to Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, who is also the
non-executive chairman of Hanison. The securities of
DIGL and Hanison are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Before he joined Mingly in 2011, he had
taught Development Economics and Chinese Economy at
the University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom since
2000. He was also the founding director of Economic
Research Centre for Greater China in Cambridge. In
1980s, Dr. Zhang worked as a government official in the
People’s Republic of China, among the posts he held,
there were Director of Mayor’s Office in Tianjin, Secretary
of the Municipal Committee of the Communist Youth
League, Chairman of Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Zone (TEDA), and Chairman of Committee
of Foreign Trade and Economic Relations of Tianjin
Municipal Government. He was also a member of the
13th National Congress of the Chinese Communist Party.
He obtained a bachelor degree in economics from Peking
University, a master degree in public administration
from Harvard University and a doctor of philosophy in
economics from the University of Oxford.
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Senior Management

Mr. Cheong Wai Ming, aged 50, has been the senior
design manager of the Group since 2013. He is primarily
responsible for design and providing technical advice
to the project and design team of the Group. Mr.
Cheong first joined the Group in 2005 as an engineering
manager, and held the position of design manager
when he left the Group in 2009. During the period from
2009 to 2011, Mr. Cheong worked in an aluminium
window installation company as designer. Mr. Cheong
rejoined the Group in 2011 as a design manager, and was
primarily responsible for design and providing technical
advice to the project and design team. Before joining the
Group in 2005, he also worked in other companies which
engaged in aluminium business as design manager. Mr.
Cheong obtained a higher certificate in building studies
from Hong Kong Technical College (now known as the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education) in June
1997.
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Mr. Chung Chun Keung, aged 47, has been the senior
manager (contracts) of the Group since 2012. He is
primarily responsible for purchasing, procurement,
contracts administration, preparation of claims, budget
control, and quantity surveyor team management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chung worked in various
construction companies in various roles (including
contracts manager, senior quantity surveyor) during
the period from 1991 to 2012. Mr. Chung obtained a
higher certificate in civil engineering from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1994, a bachelor degree of
science in quantity surveying from the University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom in July 1998,
a Diploma in Construction Management (Project
Management) from Heriot-Watt University in the United
Kingdom in July 2003 (through distance learning) and
a postgraduate certificate in occupational safety and
health in October 2005 from the University of Greenwich
in the United Kingdom (through distance learning). He
is @ member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(MRICS), Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB).

Mr. Huang Sheng Hui, aged 39, has been the plant
operations manager of ESFEZEEME (BM)BRA
Fl(Translation: Million Hope New-Tech Building Supplies
(Huizhou) Limited) (“Million Hope (Huizhou)”) since
2012. He is primarily responsible for the overall operation
of the Group’s fabrication plant in Huizhou, the PRC. Mr.
Huang first joined the Group in 2009 and was the deputy
plant manager of the fabrication plant in Huizhou, the
PRC, from 2009 to 2010, and was primarily responsible
for the operations of the fabrication plant. Mr. Huang
is currently pursuing an online degree in management
of construction project from Wuhan University of
Technology (¥ T K2) in the PRC.
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Mr. Jarn Siu Cheung, aged 46, has been the senior
project manager of the Group since 2015. He is primarily
responsible for overall coordination and management
of assigned projects, including progress, quality, cost and
client relationship, and project team management. Mr.
Jarn first joined the Group in 2006, and was a project
engineer with the Group from 2006 to 2007. After he
left the Group in 2007, he had worked in aluminium
window installation companies, and rejoined the Group
in 2011 as project manager. Prior to joining the Group in
2006, Mr. Jarn worked in various construction companies
in various roles (including project manager and site
engineer) during the period from 1993 to 2006. Mr. Jarn
obtained an associate diploma in architectural drafting
from Holmesglen Institute of TAFE in Australia in June
1997, and a bachelor degree of civil engineering from
Victoria University of Technology (now known as Victoria
University) in Australia in April 2002.

Mr. Kwok Wing Fai, aged 39, has been the senior
accounting manager of the Group since June 2018 and
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 9 August 2018. He joined Hanison in 2007 and has
been senior accounting manager of Hanison since 2015,
and he has been primarily responsible for all account
related, company secretarial and corporate finance
matters of Hanison, including the Group. Prior to joining
Hanison, Mr. Kwok worked in various Certified Public
Accountants firms as an auditor during the period from
2004 to 2007. Mr. Kwok obtained a bachelor degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2004 and a master degree in accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in September
2017. He is a Fellow Chartered and Certified Accountant
of ACCA and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant.
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Mr. Wong Kin, aged 49, has been the general manager
of Million Hope (Huizhou) since 2018. Mr. Wong joined
Million Hope (Huizhou) in 2014 as deputy general
manager. He is primarily responsible for overall general
management of the Group’s fabrication plant in
Huizhou, the PRC, including but not limited to operation,
costing and budget control, production quality, staff
management, client relationship. Prior to joining Million
Hope (Huizhou), Mr. Wong worked in a toy and gift
manufacturing company as general manager during the
period from 2010 to 2013. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor
degree of engineering in manufacturing from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 1995.

Mr. Wong Yuen On, aged 50, has been the senior
project manager of the Group since 2011. He is primarily
responsible for overall coordination and management
of assigned projects, including progress, quality, cost
and client relationship, project team management. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in 2006 as project manager.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various
construction companies in various roles (including project
manager, project coordinator) during the period from
1994 to 2006. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in
building technology and management from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1994 and a master degree of
science in construction management from The University
of Bath in the United Kingdom (through distance
learning) in January 2006.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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shares held shares held LERT
Name Capacity e H.1 FREgiEE RFEHNEINL
24 L) #8A 1 | (Britvi)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson Beneficial owner 10,615,168 231,674,492 53.09%
ERE EREEA
Interest of controlled corporations 8,266,600
SELEER (Note i)
(Friti)
Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 212,792,724
HEETIZEEA (Note ij)
(Bitii)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Beneficial owner 15,118,054 20,074,637 4.60%
= ERERA
Interest of controlled corporation 1,708,389
SELEER (Note ifi)
(Kitztiii)
Interest of spouse 3,248,194
[Ny (Note iv)
(Hritiv)
Chung Sam Tin, Abraham Beneficial owner 93,854 93,854 0.02%
W EXEEA
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 6,954,288 6,954,288 1.59%
Bt ERERA
Chuk Kin Lun Beneficial owner 1,333,600 1,652,032 0.37%
g o EREEA
Interest of spouse 318,432
BEER (Note v)
(Kiitv)
Lee Cheuk Hung Beneficial owner 560,000 560,000 0.12%
£V EXEEA
Zhang Wei Beneficial owner 1,715,200 1,715,200 0.39%
RIE ERERA
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Notes:

(i) These shares are held by Accomplished Investments
Limited and Kola Heights Limited, companies that are
wholly-owned by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson.

(i) These shares are held under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
is among the members of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(iii) Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the
Company arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the
share capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which holds
1,708,389 shares of the Company.

(iv) These shares are held by Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai, the wife
of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart.

(v)  These shares are held by Ms. Siu Lai Ping, the wife of Mr.
Chuk Kin Lun.

(vi) The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020 (i.e.
436,332,630 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or
their associates held any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2020 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the directors
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights during the year ended 31 March

2020.
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 March
2020, in addition to those interests of the directors and
chief executive of the Company as disclosed above, the
interests of the shareholders in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:
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1R i858 & & R 516 B A F R Y BR
Riga

BARAT A H2020F3 8318 B E3CAT
BREEERADABRGSTRAEZZEES
I RRRARBRG RABRDF AT
BRARAIRIEREZ R AEIRAIEXVEE336
BRAGEZECMERNT

Long position in the shares of the Company RELFIERMZHE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital
Number of (Note iv)
ordinary EERETT
shares held B & ¥
Name Capacity FR 45 8 i@ B BSL
& i3 8H (Krativ)
CCM Trust Trustee 195,080,814 44.70%
fZ5EA (Note i)
(Hfati)
Interest of controlled corporations
SEEEZER
Mingly Beneficial owner 41,697,318 9.55%
a2h BEEEBA (Note ii)
(Btatii)
Interest of controlled corporations
SEEEZER
CCM Capital Beneficial owner 31,546,508 7.22%
BEXEBA (Note ii)
(Btatii)
LBJ Trustee 27,131,828 6.21%
fEFEA (Note iii)
(Htatiii)

Interest of controlled corporation
SEEEZER

e
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Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These share interests comprise 153,383,496 shares directly
held by CCM Trust and 41,697,318 shares held indirectly
through Mingly and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. CCM
Trust is interested in 87.5% equity interest in Mingly. CCM
Trust is holding the 153,383,496 shares as the trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson, being the director of the Company)
are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson is also a director of CCM Trust.

These share interests comprise 1,493,170 shares directly
held by Mingly and 31,546,508 shares and 8,657,640
shares held indirectly through CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited, respectively. CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited are direct wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Mingly. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also the executive
chairman of Mingly and a director of CCM Capital.

These share interests comprise 24,409,172 shares directly
held by LBJ and 2,722,656 shares held indirectly through
Bie Ju Enterprises Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary. LBJ
is holding the 24,409,172 shares as the trustee of certain
but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of
the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson, being the director of the Company) are among
the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also
a director of LBJ.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020 (i.e.
436,332,630 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company)
who had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed under
paragraphs (a) and (b) of note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 227 and 228 constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other
requirements under Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
Save for the aforesaid transactions, the other related
party transactions shown in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date
of this report, to the best knowledge of the directors,
none of the directors and their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is considered to have any
interests in the businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save for those set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts that are significant in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
INSURANCE

The Company’s articles of association provides that
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a director, auditor or other officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. Such permitted indemnity provision is in force
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and at the date of
this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked
agreements during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for about 88.5% of
the revenue of the Group and the largest customer is an
independent third party, accounted for about 40.1% of
the revenue of the Group. Aggregate purchases for the
year ended 31 March 2020 attributable to the Group'’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30%.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates, or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefits schemes are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group make
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$6,080
(2019: nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the number
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Deputy Chairman
26 June 2020
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 250, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

REEZER

EREZEEERERMANEXHE I 5Y
TGS BRRNETTRAEENSE-
ELEEHRERMEAERGSUBHRRRK
HEARRRETREN KM SHELEE
REEBHER-

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REFEZER BEfMENAEEREFERER

Provision for rectification work and warranty provision

BATERBERRIEEE

consolidated financial statements as a whole

incurred during the defect liability period and
warranty period, mainly for a period of maximum | e
of 2 years and a period of maximum of 15 years
from the end of defect liability period, respectively.

ENERNTRBBERRERRYE EXEERGSY
BRAEBEZANBETERBETHRFRES (2
MEEERBEFHEREFDRBEZ2FRATES
155) B FEEMNE RS REEEE ARG FHF
HeERERSERELER .

We identified the provision for rectification work | Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
and warranty provision as a key audit matter due to | appropriateness of provision for rectification
the significance of these provisions to the Group’s | work and warranty provision included:

and the involvement of significant management | RPIF T EER I EBERRIEBEZREEIT
estimates in determining the cost of work to be | Wi2FEE :

Understanding management’s process in
identifying and estimating the provision
for rectification work and warranty
provision;

THEEERARMGHEXIERERFRE
BEORE;

Evaluating the appropriateness of
methodologies used by the management
for identifying obligation with reference to
the relevant correspondences and contracts
with customers;

SEHRZFNEBRGREHN FHEEER
REERERANT EZREL,
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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RBEREER &)

Key audit matters

REFEZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEfmENAEEREERER

BUATERERRIERE (&)

Provision for rectification work and warranty provision (Continued)

As detailed in notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, management exercises
considerable judgment in determining whether
there is a present obligation as a result of a
past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such obligation would
result in an outflow of resources and whether
the amount of obligation could be reliably
estimated. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
recognised provision in respect of cost of works
to be incurred during the defect liability period
and warranty period amounting to HK$33,709,000
and HK$34,471,000, respectively, which are the
best estimates of the Group’s liabilities based
on relevant correspondences and contracts with
customers and estimated cost for work based
on the management’s prior experience with
the consideration of the rectification work and
warranty claim in the past.

MU E DB RERWFAR 25 BEEBETHFE
RHABUBERBE AN EESEEIRARNERE
NEH ZEIREEAERERNMAREETNSE
BB A b E - A2020538318: BEBEHR
RIGEETHRRIEPEFEENETRAD BITERE
533,709,0005% 7t 234,471,000/ 7T - H I iRIBEE S
ZHEBREREHNBEHZ ﬁ%l%ﬁzﬂifﬁﬁ
RRBEEEENRERIEZRERBIRIEERZSA
KRERBH 2 s TR o

o Understanding management’s estimation
of provision for rectification work and
warranty provision and the estimation
basis, including the size of the project
and the historical data for rectification
work and warranty claim in the past, and
evaluating the reasonableness of the cost
estimates with regard to the Group’s prior
experience in addressing such matter; and

THEEBEHERIRBBRAGREZMG
a—r&fas+g+ BEEARERBIFERIRE
RREERNELEE 5 SEENER
BAMGTESEZBIFERTIGEBREEZS
B R

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of
the provision for rectification work
and warranty provision assessed by the
management by comparing the actual
expenditure to the historical provision for
rectification work and warranty provision
recognised.

ERHLERIHRERAZELERTE
BERRERE FEEZBBEIMTGE 2R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & X7 1% £ bib ¥& &5

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1% X7 1% £1 bib ¥k &5

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & X7 1% £ bib ¥& &5

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mili al\& ﬂtiﬁui?‘lﬁ X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831BLEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET FET
Revenue U &= 5 299,794 376,621
Cost of sales SHEK A (250,643) (302,137)
Gross profit EF 49,151 74,484
Other income Hiug A 7 9,974 4,107
Other gains and losses HiwFERER 8 906 1,618
(Impairment loss) reversal of EHREEEFEEENET 2
impairment loss under CRUIEE1B) B ERE
expected credit loss model, net 518 7 F &8 9 (1,338) 3,134
Gain on change in fair value REMEZ A TFEZE WS
of investment properties 500 3,200
Administrative expenses THRAX (29,286) (33,672)
Finance costs B E A 10 (1,726) (2,047)
Listing expenses FtHEHA - (22,570)
Profit before taxation MRF BRI 1 28,181 28,254
Taxation BiiE 13 (3,941) (5,372)
Profit for the year FERA 24,240 22,882
Other comprehensive expense: ~ Hfh 2 HE & H :
Item that may be subsequently HETRKEFIER
reclassified to profit or loss: BEWWEE
Exchange differences on HIEEBBRER
translation from functional 2 EMNENLEEE
currency to presentation
currency (4,213) (4,070)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEABALE
for the year 20,027 18,812
Earnings per share BRER
basic (HK$) ER(Ex) 15 0.06 1.06
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e EIRRE

AT 31 MARCH 2020
M2020%3A31R

2020 2019
20204 20195
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE Ti#ET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REW 16 64,000 63,500
Property, plant and equipment  #¥ = K& E 17 100,957 108,295
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 5,096 -
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERIE 19 - 5,271
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 28 56 -
170,109 177,066
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 20 30,962 31,182
Prepaid lease payments FEAHEERE 19 - 204
Debtors, deposits and FEWRIE -RER
prepayments FEfT IR 21 80,611 100,506
Contract assets BREE 22 42,314 50,531
Tax recoverable ] Uk B %4 18 - 7,922
Bank balances and cash RITERERS 23 297,691 304,648
451,578 494,993
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables EASERR R B ET 7R 24 36,856 53,812
Provisions BiE 25 12,383 33,666
Contract liabilities EHERE 22 - 926
Amount due to a e — R A B IE
related company 26 - 13,163
Tax payable FEf+ 18 1,329 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 102 -
Deferred income EFEU A 33 -
50,703 101,567
Net current assets mBEEFE 400,875 393,426
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAEEE 570,984 570,492
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %S B8l ¥R E

AT 31 MARCH 2020
72020F3A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MEE Ti#ET TET

Non-current liabilities eI =R
Provisions BiE 25 55,797 61,589
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 28 101 85
Lease liabilities HEERE 27 73 -
Deferred income IEIEU A 131 -
56,102 61,674
514,882 508,818

Capital and reserves BERK#HE
Share capital [N 29 43,633 43,633
Reserves e 471,249 465,185
514,882 508,818

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to
250 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf
by:

CHUK KIN LUN
]
DIRECTOR
EF

FNMTEEF20EFH 2 GREMBHR K8
EER2020F6 26 B R ER IRER M W H
THESKRREE:

LEE CHEUK HUNG
Fil
DIRECTOR
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GoOEREHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

B Z2020F3A31HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2N
Share Other  Exchange Accumulated
capital reserves reserve profits Total
kA HitEE - EXRE  BSHEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT Ti&x TEr
(note)
(BaE)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F481H - 7,615 2,785 117,330 127,730
Profit for the year FEERN - - - 22,882 22,882
Exchange differences on RYEERRER
translation from functional 2HERNELZE
currency to presentation
currency - - (4,070) - (4,070)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZME () WALEE
income for the year - - (4,070) 22,882 18,812
Issue of shares BOIR®D 43,633 - - - 43,633
Capital contribution from REERERAGNTE
immediate holding company - 318,643 - - 318,643
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3831H 43,633 326,258 (1,285) 140,212 508,818
Profit for the year FEEN - - - 24,240 24,240
Exchange differences on RYNEERRER
translation from functional ~ Z 7| &MHE R £
currency to presentation
currency - - (4,213) - (4,213)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZE (X H) WAL
income for the year - - (4,213) 24,240 20,027
Dividends paid (note 14) BRRE (K14) - (5,236) - (8,727) (13,963)
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H 43,633 321,022 (5,498) 155,725 514,882

Note: Other reserves represent capital contribution from
immediate holding company of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2019 of HK$318,643,000 and
the difference between the Group’s investment cost
of HK$3,385,000 in Million Hope Industries Limited
(“Million Hope Industries (HK)"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and the entire share capital of HK$11,000,000
of Million Hope Industries (HK) arising from the group
reorganisation, net of dividend paid during the year
ended 31 March 2020 of HK$5,236,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREREE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831BLEFE

2020 2019
20204 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Operating activities EEXEK
Profit before taxation BR AR A i A 28,181 28,254
Adjustments for: T
Interest income FE U A (7,535) (25)
Interest expense FEXH 1,726 2,047
Depreciation of property, ME-BRERZEUAR
plant and equipment and right- FEREEEZITE
of-use assets 4,998 4,613
Net provisions (reversed) HRREME (BE) FHE
recognised (9,539) 22,817
Gain on change in fair value of REYMEZ A TFEZB 2 HE
investment properties (500) (3,200)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZEZESR
plant and equipment - 15
Impairment loss (reversal of EHEEFBEERNETZ
impairment loss) under BEEE (BEREERE)
expected credit loss model, net THEE 1,338 (3,134)
Reversal of impairment loss BECHRIAZFERERE
recognised on inventories - (1,366)
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAI2EERER
movements in working capital 18,669 50,021
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERED (&) 944 (2,033)
Decrease (increase) in debtors, FEWFRIE 1R & RFEMNFRIER D
deposits and prepayments (¥ ) 19,443 (29,904)
Decrease in contract BHEE 8B
assets/liabilities 6,642 13,568
Decrease in trade and other payables  FE{TBR T & H th FE S FE R 2 (16,557) (4,550)
Utilisation of provisions BEEBA (19,260) (35,750)
Cash from (used) in operating activities R B (IR @ EE£K 2R E 9,881 (8,648)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) Bi&i& (E1) FBREH 5,270 (21,018)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EEMEHR - (73)
Interest paid 2AFR (2) -
Net cash from (used in) operating RE (AR)EEXEBR 2 REFHE
activities 15,149 (29,739)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZB IR EnE &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

2020 2019
20204 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Investing activities REXEH
Interest received 2 WFE 5,868 25
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BMERZEMSRIE
plant and equipment 676 33
Government grants received 2 W BT Bh 164 -
Purchase of property, BEVE BERRE
plant and equipment (1,027) (4,180)
Net cash from (used in) investing RE (AR REXB RS FHE
activities 5,681 (4,122)
Financing activities A& R
Dividends paid EIRE (13,963) -
Repayment to a related company @ — Fﬁ@% BARER (13,163) -
Repayments of lease liabilities 171%*51%1%1? (85) -
Capital contribution from immediate REEBEEZERATREE
holding company - 318,643
Issue of shares BT - 43,633
Advance from immediate holding REBEEZERQRNERK
company - 16,164
Repayment to immediate holding MEZEERATER
company - (80,453)
Net cash (used in) from (AR REMEXEK BSR4
financing activities (27,211) 297,987
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReRBAESEE (ORD)BMFEE
cash equivalents (6,381) 264,126
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERBEEEE
beginning of the year 304,648 40,646
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRE &) 2 F & (576) (124)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end  F#& Iﬁ,é}ifﬁéfﬁ
of the year, representing bank EBIRTHEBRRIRE
balances and cash 297,691 304,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated and registered
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 20 February 2018 under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands and
its shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 March 2019 (the “Listing”). Prior
to the Listing, its ultimate holding company is
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
and its immediate holding company is Hanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Hanison
Construction (BVI)”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Upon the Listing, Hanison
and its subsidiaries became related companies of
the Company in which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
("CCM Trust”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and certain discretionary trusts have
beneficial interests. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls.

B 15 sR R M G

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831BLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of
the other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
the interpretation in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)
- Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 April 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied is 4.9%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B ZE2020F3A318LFE

2. ERFMAIRESITTERMER
FHA([FEMBREEN])
(#&)

R A F EEEE W ET REERT
FEREMGHEEN (@)

FEMEGHBEEANE16R A

(#&)

1ERAMBA ()

At 1 April
2019
20195
481H
HK$'000
FExT
Operating lease commitments disclosed M2019F3A31HFTINEN
as at 31 March 2019 REHERE 132
Less: Recognition exemption — short term leases WERRE-EHEE (16)
116
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental  2A2019F48 1B ERAE B
borrowing rate relating to operating leases HMEEAE 16N ERANLE
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 HENHBEEERFER
as at 1 April 2019 WHEAE 110
Analysed as AT
Current mE 59
Non-current FERED 51
110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own

2. ERFMAIRESITTERMER
FHA([FEMBREEN])
(#&)

& FEEE SR ET R AEERT
FERMGHEER (&)

FEMEHBEEANE16R A
(&)
1ERRBA (#)

2019F4B1EMBERFEAEEE Z2RA

use as at 1 April 2019 comprises the following: BEFEUT:
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases EREBMKREERFE 1655
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 RERANKCEHEEBN
EREEE 110
Reclassified from prepaid leases payments (note) BFEMNEEREEH S8 (&) 5,475
5,585
By class: RER
Leasehold lands HELTH 5,475
Buildings BF 110
5,585
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16, the Group is not required to make any
adjustment on transition for leases in which the
Group is a lessor but account for these leases in
accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not
been restated.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under trade and other payables. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right-
of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect at transition. The adjustment has
insignificant impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 April 2019.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

ERAHMITREEITEEMGE
FHA([FEMBREEN])
(#&)

R A F EEEE W ET REERT
FEREMGHEEN (@)

FEMEGHBEEANE16R A

(#&)
1ERH A

RIS E B B3RS R 51658 AVIB R %
X AEEBARHEAHBEANEEEY
HRERE  BA8BXEMRBHER
BEEBEMBREENE16FREHZSHE
ETETTRE HEYEREINLRER -

REREBVEHREERE165E 251
EWBWAREHERSERATES
FFEAEI7TREES R EMENRET
FE AR EREFIMEL - RIBBBIIER
HEAF1GSENEENRNES 1R
ETREFRAREERBANSTRALLSA
B RMEENREE - AEEAREE
R2019F 4B 1B E M BER KT E
Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 458
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND BRI REETEEMER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HFHA([FEMBERSERN])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (4&)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 April 2019. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been

REFEAFENOMITRIEERT
FREMBGHEEN (&)

EEMBEREENE16REE]
(#)
HN2019F4 81 B NGE BB ARA

BEROFAEL T 5% - LR RA
ERBYEHER -

included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported HKFRS 16
at 31 March at 1 April
2019 Adjustments 2019
20195
4A1H
20195 BREEE
3A31H S
A2 AR 551655
M ERME(E HE  AENEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 5,585 5,585
Prepaid lease payments BEAHEERE (M)
(note) 5,271 (5,271) -
Current asset REBEE
Prepaid lease payments ENEERE (&)
(note) 204 (204) -
Current liability REBEE
Lease liability HESE - (59) (59)
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liability HEAE - (51) (51)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 March
2019. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current
and non-current portion of prepaid lease payments
amounting to HK$204,000 and HK$5,271,000
respectively, were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 March 2020, movements in working
capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
April 2019 as disclosed above.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

ERAHMITREEITEEMGE
FHA([FEMBREEN])
(#&)

R A F EEEE W ET REERT
FEREMGHEEN (@)

FEMEGHBEEANE16R A
(#&)

Mizt: RPEARKLANE ((PE)BEE
+ # BRI FRIE R 20193 A31H
PEARNEERE -ERAEEH
BHmEERAE 167K BNHEE
RENARBRIFERBED 2B
204,000 7T }% 5,271,000 T &
MoBEEREREEE-

BARBEEEASREE 2020638318 1
FENKETEMEBRESREMS ' &E
BLEEIRE2019F48 1B W EN 4R
BB TRE (W EXFEE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

—y=\

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent

HKFRS 16 Concessions®
Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Reform?*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset 2
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

June 2020

Interest Rate Benchmark

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, “the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards”, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except as stated below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. In particular, the amendments:

J include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to
omitting or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing
users from “could influence” to “could
reasonably be expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

ERAHMITREEITEEMGE
FHA([FEMBREEN])
(#&)

E 77 5 48 f) 5K 2 SR #R BT R AR 4B BT
FERMBREEN #2)
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FTON A2018F B M KBTI K|S
ZRESHELE - IRV E KIEF] [ BB
HMEEA 2 B AELRIE S| 2185T 1 R
2020F 1AV AS 2 BB N EEBE
o

BRTSFRELSN - N B ESTEH - AT
BHEMMIT BB BREENR BT
RAURKRITEHGREMBRREN
EAEE

V]

TR EANSRREESERNSE
SIRMBET [EXMER]

ZEBIBEBEAEHERHA SR
SMESI R  HE RN ERETIER
LERBBER:

e BE[REIEZERNM HE
BERIRBERBELRR

s BMEEEREEERMMNEEIA
FEEHAFE R [THE] R

e BEHRAAAIETEREAE] Mk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material” (Continued)

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses
on rights and a new liability definition that
is likely to be broader than the definition it
replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards (Continued)

o discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance
on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the
current value of an asset or liability; and

e  discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to
the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still
referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2020. Other
than specific standards which still refer to the
previous versions of the framework, the Group will
rely on the New Framework on its effective date
in determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are
not otherwise dealt with under the accounting
standards.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the investment properties that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are consolidated using the existing book
values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or bargain purchase gain at the time of common
control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income include the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter
period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
businesses had been combined at the beginning of
the previous reporting period or when they first
came under common control, whichever is shorter.

3.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to non-
financial assets, which include investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value
model and financial assets and financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(“HKFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHB®R @)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does
not have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payment in advance or in
arrear are in accordance with the typical payment
terms of the relevant industry, which has a primary
purpose other than financing.

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty as
a separate performance obligation and allocates a
portion of the transaction price to that performance
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Warranties (Continued)

If a customer does not have the option to purchase
a warranty separately, the Group accounts for the
warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type
warranties).

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
warranty provision and provision for rectification
work is described in the accounting policy for
provisions below.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for own use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
(upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease
payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parking space that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHB®R @)

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term are
depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 458
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transition in note
2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the PRC and are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade debtors
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fee and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020

3.

EERHBER &

MEIR

E-ZXEEERZHEIVYABIANS
WIFR UBEERVBEES TUR
woMBNERBEBENHE VKA
ENERRXZ AHEERIRBUBER -
ERBEEENERN TS LR NIES
FrEEzREERARNEEZYKE

EEH-

MBEERMBEENREAFENE
HEEFENEENRBURRRETBY
B EERNE 1SR LE - W HRIT
MBREERMBAGE(UAFEAER
HEgtABE ((MAFEFEARS
Bt AR ) WU BEEELMBEER
5N EEBERZ AR SR A
BHEELNHEEEN I FERB MK
EEIMBEENQIFENSR (RER
BRTE) - WIBULAFEFEEHE
AR REERNMHREEEERE
ER 5 R RIB R R o

ERNRZEZRFENBEERYBER
o AR AN AR FE AR B HA ) AU 0 B A B UK
ARFEXZHN-—BRE-BREAXRRE
BB BREENMBEBEERTIER
FHAERYPEA (WEE) WEETARRK
REWRRARE (BEZAREE
BRERR AKX NAEERME
B -RZEAUKREMBERINE) £k
WRBNRERES 2 REFEMER
FZR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

J the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL except that at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHB®R @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) MBIR (&)

Financial assets (Continued) MBEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of HBEEEC D EREEE ()

financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if: MBEERTIERAFIEEER:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose e WENIEZEEMANEHREE;
of selling in the near term; or =

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio o RUSTHERAFERAEESHER
of identified financial instruments that the HERAIMBETAEAESH —BD
Group manages together and has a recent WEBRHEREIHERER

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and e  WHERBERBHRE HPT AN
effective as a hedging instrument. H£THo
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a e b A< 52 B °] R B e b i — IH R HR
financial asset that are required to be measured at BEAASIEEAULAFEFEEESE
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL Bt AHMEEKGRTENMEEER
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an ERAUNFEFEBES BT ABRG
accounting mismatch. 2 ARATBEETERIAEHRSS
HEE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade debtors, contract assets,
deposits, other receivables and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
debtors and contract assets. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix
grouping of various customers with similar credit

risk characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether the
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(if)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
of the borrower; or

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event; or

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHBR @)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) M¥EIR #)
Financial assets (Continued) MEEE (&)

HMBEERERAREE EHHHEE
RIE9FEITHIEIZAIREMIER (#)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)
(iv) Write-off policy (iv) HEEEER
The Group writes off a financial asset when EEERBETRRZYUFRABREN

there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade debtors, when the amounts are over
three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019)
or HKAS 17 (prior to 1 April 2019).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade debtors and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and amount due to a related company are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type
warranty obligations under the relevant contracts
with customers for provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain walls
services are recognised at the date of sale of the
relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligation.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to
individual cash generating units when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to
the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group cash-generating units) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment
in a subsidiary, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investment is only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

3.

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deductible from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHB®R @)

(Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's state-managed retirement
benefits scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
the exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’'s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment properties and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved
in the determination of the cost of work to be
incurred during the defect liability period and
warranty period. Accordingly, management
exercises considerable judgment in determining
whether there is a present obligation as a result
of a past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such warranty services and
rectification work will result an outflow of resources
and whether the amount of the obligation can
be reliably estimated with reference to size of the
project, relevant correspondences and contracts
with customers. The management estimates the
cost for warranty services and rectification work
with regard to the Group’s experience in addressing
such matters. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
recognised provision related to warranty costs and
rectification work amounting to HK$68,180,000
(2019: HK$95,255,000) (note 25).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2020 at their fair value of HK$64,000,000
(2019: HK$63,500,000) (note 16). The fair value was
based on valuation of these properties conducted
by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited
(2019: Jones Lang LaSalle Limited), an independent
property valuer. In determining the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties, the valuer
applied a market value basis which involves, inter-
alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgments, representing appropriate market rent
and capitalisation rate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade debtors and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and
the Group’s trade debtors and contract assets are
disclosed in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

REVENUE

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts
received and receivable from the provision of
design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services by the Group to
external customers which is recognised over time
as the Group’s contract work enhances an asset
that the external customers control as the Group
performs. The Group's revenue is derived from long-
term contracts in relation to provision of design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows and
curtain walls services in Hong Kong and Mainland
China during the year.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

Wi
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2020 2019
20204 201945
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Provision of design, supply REUEZT HERZEREER
and installation of aluminium BB
windows and curtain walls
services 299,794 376,621

The customers of the Group are mainly property
developers and main contractors in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. All of the Group’s provision
of design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services are made directly
with the customers. Contracts with the Group's
customers are mainly fixed-price contracts, except
for the variation orders.

AEEEFEERBTBRPEALNY
EERBRIEARD - AEERRH
ERzERERFRRFIEEQRTF
Rft-AEEREFHENIRREEE
BREN (IRBERSHIN) -

ESBEERBIRAST 2019/2020 F ¥R

181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. k& #m)
Disaggregation of revenue L §=329
By contract type REMRNIES
2020 2019
20204 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Design, supply and installation ~ B ZEYRT HER
for curtain walls, aluminium ZRAEE EMAEREMER
windows, doors and other (MtaEiRii)
products for new buildings
(notes i and ii) 205,678 167,738
Design, supply and installation ~ AHEEYRT HER
for aluminium windows, doors ~ ZHEEFE R HMER
and other products for new (HtEEii)
buildings (note ii) 80,139 201,950
Design, supply and installation ~ AREREVYNEEIE
for renovation works for ARG HERZERKE
existing buildings 8,061 5,003
Repairing, maintenance and HIBRES (FaEiii)
others (note iii) 5,916 1,930
Total Ha 299,794 376,621
Notes: MiaE

(i) The contract type involves aluminium windows,
doors and other products in addition to curtain
walls. The curtain walls are the principal products for
the contract type and the principal revenue from this
contract type is also from curtain walls.

(ii) Other products represent balustrade, louvre,
cladding, window wall, canopy and grille.

(iii) Others mainly represent mock up and window
testing (2019: mock up).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

REVENUE (continued)

Performance obligations for contract with
customers

The Group provides design, supply and installation
of aluminium windows and curtain walls services
under long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls services begin. The Group'’s
supply and installation of aluminium windows and
curtain walls enhances an asset that the external
customers control as the Group performs. Revenue
from provision of design, supply and installation
of aluminium windows and curtain walls services
is therefore recognised over time using output
method, i.e. based on units of products installed
or based on surveys of supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services
completed by the Group to date as certified by
independent surveyors appointed by the customers
in relation to the work completed by the Group.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to
the same contract, is recognised over the period
in which the construction services are performed
representing the Group’s right to consideration
for the services performed. The contract assets
are transferred to trade debtors when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention money, prior to expiration of defect
liability period, are classified as contract assets,
which ranges from one to two years from the date
of the practical completion of the construction. The
relevant amount of contract asset is reclassified
to trade debtors when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed
comply with agreed-upon specifications and such
assurance cannot be purchased separately.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

1 &=2¢ ]

SEEEFSVRTEHIERENHX

nRE

RBEMRIBEE (RETHHD KE
TIBTERAVEBHRZERRAHKE

unsatisfied) as at the end of reporting period and BT
the expected timing of recognising revenue are as
follows:
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Within one year —FR 285,745 252,394
More than one year but not BE-FETEBME
more than two years 277,577 194,165
More than two years BN E 50,452 41,319
613,774 487,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment
focusing on the provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services. This operating segment has been
identified on the basis of internal management
reports that are regularly reviewed by the directors
of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, no further
analysis of segment information is presented.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from
external customers is presented based on the
geographical location of the projects:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

SHEH

REBUEBEMER HERZERER
e RE 2 E—KEDEf - REEDEE
REBEALANES (MEBLERKE) M
FAIERRANGETENEN 2R
HERREER - HAit WEZS|E—F
T ERPE R DA o

ith 1= 8 #
BEASERBIGEF 2 WmEREZ
HEWGENEZWT :

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TiE T

Hong Kong &8 288,952 347,934
Mainland China AR A i 10,842 19,183
Other (Saipan) Hih (EMB) - 9,504
299,794 376,621

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding deferred tax assets) is presented based on
the location of assets:

BRAKERRBEE (TRBEELHE
BE)CEHREEMEHEZSIWT

2020 2019
20205 201945

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TBT

Hong Kong Bk 150,678 154,369
Mainland China A i 19,375 22,697
170,053 177,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

6. FWMEH =
FREREFRMEH

REEAEFLARFI0%B A LEZEFW
WEMT :

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FExT

Customer a ZFa 32,843 76,851

Customer b ZFb 120,313 76,031

Customer ¢ ZFc 82,490 125,474
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hftlk A

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FExT

Interest income FE U A 7,535 25

Rental income HeEWA 1,555 1,555

Sales of scrap materials SHERER 448 2,373

Government grants BUT %5 B 177 -

Others Hib 259 154

9,974 4,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtlkB REIR
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Exchange gains 0 5 U 2= 906 1,633
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BRERZEZEER
plant and equipment - (15)
906 1,618
9. (IMPAIRMENT LOSS) REVERSAL OF 9. FHGEEGREXT (BESH
IMPAIRMENT LOSS UNDER EXPECTED H)BESRBORE
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Net impairment losses (recognised) it T %I & 8 2 B EE 1B (EHER)
reversed on: B[Ol FEE -
— trade debtors — FEURBR X (566) 2,922
— contract assets —-EHEE (772) 212
(1,338) 3,134
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B EH
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#&T TFET
Imputed interest expense on BBENEERNEXH
provisions 1,724 2,047
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBRE 2 -
1,726 2,047
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. BRIRAEF

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit before taxation has been  BRELADEFIS MR (5t A) THIF
arrived at after charging |
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EEB <€ (FfzF12)
Fees wme 1,875 423
Other emoluments Hih i< 4,984 8,841
Equity-settled share-based RERGEEUROGAEBRNER
payments - 1,826
6,859 11,090
Other staff costs Hh8 TR
Salaries and other benefits FeRkHEMER 63,034 62,846
Retirement benefits scheme Hitt & TRABRIFT MK
contributions for other staff 5,536 5,143
Equity-settled share-based RESFEZEUROABERNLR
payments - 634
Total staff costs E T AEEE 75,429 79,713
Less: Staff costs included in W ETATFERANE THRA
cost of inventories (12,202) (15,235)
63,227 64,478
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ AL EITE 277 N/ATiE
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZBITE
plant and equipment 6,570 7,238
Less: Depreciation expenses W ETATFERANITERX
included in the cost of
inventories (1,849) (2,625)
4,998 4,613
Auditor’s remuneration AZ BB Fr BN 1,480 1,530
Operating lease rentals in respect HEYEKEEEFTIEN
of minimum lease payments of &LZHEHRS
rented premises N/ARE R 94
Cost of inventories recognised BRARIZFERRK
as expenses 107,013 129,626
Reversal of impairment loss ERRAZFEREEERRE
recognised on inventories (note)  (Ff&E) - (1,366)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 1. BRRBIET (&
2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiEx
Gross rental income under KEBREET 2HESWAEEE
operating leases (1,555) (1,555)
Release of prepaid lease payments 5t A7 & AN WY FB {J FH & X IB 3 B
included in cost of inventories N/AFE B 204
Note:The reversal of impairment loss recognised on Mizx: HREZE2019F3831HILEEECHER
inventories during the year ended 31 March 2019 ZEREREBEEERE NERNERE
was attributable to the utilisation of the inventories EREBEABAZEE-

upon resumption of the delayed project.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 458
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable
to directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as director/employee
of the group entities prior to becoming
the directors of the Company) by entities
comprising the Group during the year as
follows:

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

FR-AEEETEECHHEN
AABESHHE (BEREESR
NREBAEAEEERIES
BERHBHENME) FHEUT:

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Share-based
Fees benefits payments contributions payments Total
feR BHFEFR HEkRE
e Heyigs wnRe HEHR ERNMAR - h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEr TEr TERr TEr TEr
(note ix) (note x)
(BfzEix) (BfzEx)
Year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020F3A31H
LEE
Executive directors (note i) #77Z% (Mi3Ei)
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (note ii)  fAEEA &4 (FisEii) - 1,236 1,060 185 - 2,481
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung Fa ik (M)
(note ii) - 1,320 1,060 123 - 2,503
Alternate Director (note iii) ZZEZ (Kistiii)
Dr. Zhang Wei REET - - - - - -
Non-executive directors ~ HEHTEE (Miztiv)
(note iv)
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson &#& 4 1,000 - - - - 1,000
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart T tthZ54 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Tai Sai Ho Bt ZE4E 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham$E /0B % 4 (Hifztv)
(note v) 75 - - - - 75
Independent non-executive BY #H{TEE
directors (note iv) (MtzEiv)
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki {7 & %1% 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Poon Kan Young BREEE 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Yip Kai Yung ERARE 200 - - - - 200
Total emoluments “Bme 1,875 2,556 2,120 308 - 6,859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 12.E5 - BERTHARRER#HS
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (#)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EEREEBETHARHMS
emoluments (Continued) (#)
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits payments contributions payments Total
FgR BFET HEiE
ne Hrigs wnRe HEHR  ERNMAR -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTET TAET FTET

(note ix) (note x)
(Bf&Eix) (HizEx)
Year ended 31 March 2019 35201#333)5] 31H
Executive directors (note i) #77ZF (Mizti)
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (note ii)  $4&RA L4 (FiEEii) - 1,177 3,400 177 413 5,167
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung IR (M)

(note ii) - 1,248 2,300 116 183 3,847
Non-executive directors ~ F#E7Z%F (Mfitiv)

(note iv)

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson &E#& f4 (Hizvi)

(note vi) 340 - - - 270 610
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart T tiE5%4 (Kiztvii)

(note vii) N 10 226 - 34 640 910
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (note vii) Bt Z 24 (Kiwvii) 10 142 - 21 320 493
Independent non-executive ]§_z FHTEE

directors (note iv) (M=Eiv)

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki a4 E#0#% ( Kzt viii)

(note viii) 21 - - - - 21
Mr. Poon Kan Young BB EE (HEtviil)

(note viii) . 21 - - - - 21
Mr. Yip Kai Yung (note viii) EZRL4E (Hiztvii) 21 - - - - 21
Total emoluments “ame 423 2,793 5,700 348 1,826 11,090
Notes: BT
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown () LEXFIEHZHTEEMNSTIR

above were for their services in connection HEEBEAEESKERZR
with the management of the affairs of the Bm e
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung
were appointed as executive directors and
joint managing directors of the Company
on 9 August 2018. They also act as the
chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by them as the chief
executives.

Dr. Zhang Wei was appointed as an alternate
director of the Company to Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson on 3 July 2019.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments
and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on 3
July 2019.

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on
9 August 2018. The non-executive director’s
emoluments of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
of HK$105,000 and HK$505,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was for his service in
the capacity of a non-executive director of the
Company and Hanison, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 S Bil 5% #Rk 2= Ml 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii) Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart and Mr. Tai Sai
Ho were directors of Company and were
redesignated as non-executive directors of the
Company on 9 August 2018. The non-executive
directors’ emoluments of Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart of HK$10,000 and HK$900,000 and Mr.
Tai Sai Ho of HK$10,000 and HK$483,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2019 shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group in
the capacity of non-executive directors of the
Company and executive directors of Hanison,
respectively.

(viii) Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, Mr. Poon Kan
Young and Mr. Yip Kai Yung were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 22 February 2019.

(ix) The performance related incentive payments
are determined based on the performance of
the individual and the Group’s performance
and profitability for the year.

(x) Share-based payments represent contribution
borne by the Group arising from the share
options and share awards granted to certain
directors of the Company under the share
option scheme and share award scheme of
Hanison, ultimate holding company of the
Company prior to the Listing.

(&)

B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

12.EF ERTRARRESME

(a) EEREETTHRASHE

(#&)

s (&)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

FHREERBESEERED
R EEIWA2018F8H9H FAE
RARBFHITES LAY
IREERBESEEREE
20193831 B L FEMEHIT
ESMENREALDAFHT
ESNEBHTESSNMER
FEESBREZREDHNES
HIBi £ 10,0007 7T 12900,0005% 7T
LA % 10,0007% 7T % 483,00058 7T

A EHR BRBELEERER
BEREM2019F282HE EE
RAEARBBULFHTES

BRREDENFRBEARRER
FEBRARBREDMERE

LURD XY 2 IREE A R B E R
BEE (RETAADBZRR
2D R BB AR AERT 8 N AR 1D 2R R
FFEAMAARETESREBR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 1N2.E5 - BRTRARBRERE#HSE

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (#)

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) ERE&
The five highest paid individuals included two B ZE202063A31ALLEE R A
(2019: two) directors of the Company for the BEHFALTEERSA (20195 K
year ended 31 March 2020, details of whose B)ARRNBES  BEZHEHBE
emoluments are set out above. Details of the REX-FR HBRBFEAR AR ES
remuneration for the year of the remaining ThESTHRAENESHEEN
highest paid employees who are neither MEFBAT:

director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Salaries and other benefits #FH<& Rk HEMER 3,070 2,932
Performance related BERRE
incentive payments 734 720
Retirement benefits RINEFETBIER
scheme contributions 302 289
Equity-settled share-based — BARE# 45 & I LARR 10 2SI FKIE
payments - 25
4,106 3,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees
were within the following bonds:

icl /Q
mwh O

A 35 $h % M 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

(b) ERE& &)

1. B8 BRETRARREARHE
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (4)

RSN EE U TEER

2020 2019
20204 20195
Number Number
of employee of employee
EEAS BEAH
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,0007% JT
HK$1,500,000 3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company nor the five
highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during both years. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during both years.

RMEFERN AEERERDAQ
AEEITEBRESHAL (BREE
EREE)XNHMEESMALE
ERMAFERR 2 RERIEDE
BEE RWEFER  SHERQT
ESREREAMNE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

13. TAXATION 13. 1A
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
The taxation charge (credit) MIEZEH (ER)EE:
comprises:
Current taxation BN EARE 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBAEB 3,134 5,128
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIBEFBH 847 -
3,981 5,128
Deferred taxation (note 28) IERERE (KMEE28) (40) 244
3,941 5,372

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities in Hong Kong
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of
the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2,000,000.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary
is 25%. No provision for taxation in the PRC
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019 as
there was no assessable profit for the year ended 31
March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

13. TAXATION (continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

13. I8 (&)

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

FENAEGABEERAMEE RS X
WERBEADE R RO T

follows:
2020 2019
20205 2019%
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Profit before taxation BRB A& A 28,181 28,254
Tax at the applicable income tax #ZiE A FTEHHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20195 1 16.5% ) 5t & ZJ’F)DLIE 4,650 4,662
Tax effect of expenses not FAHMBRAZHOREEZE
deductible for tax purpose 627 3,997
Tax effect of income not taxable HBEMFTUANBIETE
for tax purpose (1,334) (535)
Tax effect of utilisation of By A e AR TR Z AT R
deductible temporary EREZH2RBEE
differences previously not
recognised - (2,401)
Effect of different tax rate REMAEERKEE 2
of a subsidiary operating in WEARZTRIMENTE
other jurisdiction 154 (186)
Income tax at concessionary rate IREEREHENFAEH (165) (165)
Others Hth 9 -
Taxation for the year FEBIEA 3,941 5,372

ESEBEERBRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. &R
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Dividends for ordinary REFEBRIRNGERQIAEBR
shareholders of the Company Rz’ E
recognised at distribution during
the year:
2020 interim dividend — HK1.2 2020 R ERRR B — 3R 1.278 4
cents per share (2019: 2019 (20195 : 2019F HHIRR E — )
interim dividend - nil) 5,236 -
2019 final dividend - HK2.0 cents 2019F R Hi iR B — = 1% 2.0l
per share (2019: 2018 final (2019%F : 2018 F REARR B — &)
dividend - nil) 8,727 -
13,963 -
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Proposed final dividend for the ~ #Z2020%3A31H It HEE
financial year ended 31 March ZEBRAKREHBER2.0E1
2020 of HK2.0 cents per share (20195 : H ZE2019%3H31H 1t
(2019: for the financial year MBFERER2.08)
ended 31 March 2019 of HK2.0
cents per share) 8,727 8,727

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share

15. BlREF

ARBBEEARGEFESRERRATD

attributable to owners of the Company for the year REUTHEBEFTE:
is based on the following data:
2020 2019
20204 2019%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Earnings BRI
Profit for the year attributable  ARFTEERELRER
to owners of the Company for N2 B#HE AL FEEF
the purpose of basic earnings
per share 24,240 22,882

Number of shares

BB
2020 2019
20205 20194
Weighted average number %40 N #E 39 &
of shares
Weighted average number of ARTFAESRERRBT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose & IR i F 19 &
of basic earnings per share 436,332,630 21,517,869

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there
was no potential ordinary share for both years.

£

HRMEFEIEEEEER HAES
IgREERA -

BEERBIRAE 2019/2020 &F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

& 5 B 75 ¥R % Bl 5

16. R EWYE

The Group leases out offices under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically
run for a period of 3 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currency
of the group entity. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease

AEERBEEEHEHERLAE  HEA
BRAXN -REHE-RABHP=F-

HRAAAEEESUEEEESBNIIEE
ERHE BASEYERBAEZSME
ERsNEE R - A E S A M BB RIEREE
ERRE/REEAREBERERSGEE
MIREERERE -

term.
HK$'000
TET
FAIR VALUE ANEE
At 1 April 2018 A2018F4A1H 60,300
Gain on change in fair value NEEEE 2 W 3,200
At 31 March 2019 72019%3A31H 63,500
Gain on change in fair value N EZH 2 W& 500
At 31 March 2020 202053 A31H 64,000

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2020 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited (2019: Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited), an independent property
valuer not connected with the Group. Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited (2019: Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited) has appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The management reports the findings
to the board of directors of the Company every six
months to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value of the property.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

As at 31 March 2020, the valuation of properties
amounting to HK$64,000,000 (2019: HK$63,500,000)
was arrived at by reference to the income
capitalisation method which is based on the
capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurement

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are situated in Hong Kong
and are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment
properties. All investment properties of the Group
are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during both years.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

16. B EME &)

REEERE=SSERMGEMETH
B EEEHESERIIEGEMBEES
5 LY SBNMES EREX @A
BE-EEEENEANARAEEEE
BRER  UBEBNELFEREZRE -

a2 D TFER WX ZBSRE
HERRAHBAAR

M2020F3A318 2R AE R EM
B 2 ¥ % 1 & £64,000,0005 7T (2019
163,500,000/ 7T) @ Lk AR IBIE R
AEEERbE R EERAFET U
BER( MERCLLRDBEBIMBER

ERNREECERRNPEMBEES
ﬁ °

AFEERBEREF=RMOFHEHR

REBRBUEEHEERNIFE  BUR
WEESRERNBERBE N ZWEERN
REBALZAFEENNE A BERA
RIBRENE -ARBEFRARENEE
RIFE =R D FEEME

RWEFER  WEAFHESRETER
B BVER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. EWYE &)

Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant
unobservable inputs:

B-WREERE

TREJERRNAEERARE

Significant unobservable inputs (note)

EXFUERGABE (M)
Investment Valuation Fair Capitalisation Monthly market
properties method value rate  rent (per square feet)
BATE#RS
REME {§EHE QF{E - 3(4:4: (BEHKR)
Commercial Income capitalisation HK$64,000,000 2.7% (2019: 2.5%) HK$23.1 to HK$25.2

approach (2019: HK$63,500,000)

[HES L ON-¥:X(473 64,000,000 T
(20195 :
63,500,0003% 7T)

Note: The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
are (i) the higher the capitalisation rate, the lower
the fair value; and (ii) the higher the market rent,
the higher the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. %E BERRRE

Furniture
Plant and and Office Leasehold Motor
Buildings  equipment fixtures  equipment improvements vehicles Moulds Total
R
B HERRRE BHURRE WG MREE RE 1) it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TEx TER TAR TERx TER TR

CosT B

At 1 April 2018 R201854A18 116,095 18,956 927 5,738 5,170 2,030 2142 149,158
Exchange adjustments ERRE (1,638) (980) (an (201) (34) (83) - (2,953)
Additions HE - 14 65 1,850 - 2123 - 4,180
Disposals TE - (92) - - - (220) - (312)
At 31 March 2019 R2019E3A318 114,457 18,026 975 7,387 5,136 3,850 bIv) 150,073
Exchange adjustments ERAZE (1,665) (989) (17) (230) (16) (67) - (2,984)
Additions HE - - 83 976 8 - - 1,027
Disposals HE - - - - - (940) - (940)
At 31 March 2020 72020838318 112,792 17,037 1,001 8,133 5,128 2,843 bIv) 147,176
DEPRECIATION ik 4

At 1 April 2018 0184518 13,069 14,428 m 5377 1,258 1,303 bIy) 36,448
Exchange adjustments ERAZE (702) (675) (12) (194) (6) (55) - (1,644)
Provided for the year EERE 4,245 1,202 45 324 732 690 - 7,238
Eliminated on disposals &R H - (54) - - - (210) - (264)
At 31 March 2019 201934318 16,612 14,901 804 5,507 1,984 1,728 212 4,778
Exchange adjustments ERAE (822) (771) (13) (201) @ (51) - (1,865)
Provided for the year FERE 4,19 464 56 577 731 546 - 6,570
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEREHE - - - - - (264) - (264)
At 31 March 2020 72020538318 19,986 14,504 847 5,883 2,708 1,959 2142 46,19
CARRYING VALUES FEE

At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A318 92,806 2,443 154 2,250 2,420 884 - 100,957
At 31 March 2019 201934318 97,845 3,125 171 1,880 3,152 2122 - 108,295
The above items of property, plant and equipment Ut -BERZEEE DERERE
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the ROTEAFHITE:

following useful lives:

Buildings 20 years — 30 years BT 20 Z305F
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of HEVHEEE REBSSER

improvements the lease period or 5 years (UREEAE%E)
Other assets 5 years Hih &= 5%

ESEBEERBIRAS 2019/2020 F iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EHIEHEE
Leasehold Leased
lands buildings Total
HELH HERTF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2019 #2019%4R1H
Carrying amount BREE 5,475 110 5,585
As at 31 March 2020 720205%3A31H
Carrying amount BREE 4,918 178 5,096
For the year ended #XE2020%3A31H
31 March 2020 IEEE
Additions to nEFEREEE
right-of-use assets 150
Depreciation charge mEER 277
Expense relating to EHESRERER
short-term leases with BBMKRELER
lease terms end within F165 HHAE12 A A
12 months of the date of #ZRWEHEEFRHAN
initial application (a3
of HKFRS 16 16
Total cash outflow HERERLHELEHE
for leases 103

For both years, the Group leases car parking spaces
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 2 to 3 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.
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18.

19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$175,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$178,000 as at 31 March 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

18. FHEEE »)

b5 7A2020%F3 8310 - BRAEES
&175,0008 o - HHEAFEAREEE A
178,000/8 T - BRHEA R ENNEEE
ENRAERSN  HEHBETEIMNERZ
o HEEETSAERBIIER-

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. AFHEHERE
2019
20194
HK$'000
TFET
The prepaid lease payments comprises: RNEERUERRE:
Leasehold land in the PRC R HE L i 5,475
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHRENIHOT :
Current asset RBEE 204
Non-current asset ERBEE 5,271
5,475
INVENTORIES 20. 8
2020 2019
202045 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFiE T
Raw materials R 14,611 9,648
Work in progress EEIRE 16,351 21,534
30,962 31,182

ESEBEERBIRAS 2019/2020 F iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 21. BElg B - RERTAMTRIRA

PREPAYMENTS

2020 2019

20204 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi#ET FExT

Trade debtors FE UR BR FX 73,517 92,292

Deposits and prepayments BERBENRIE 4,124 4,053

Value-added tax receivables FE WL (E - 2,136

Other receivables H i fE Y 8 2,970 2,025

80,611 100,506

AEESRTHEFHNRRMB30E90
B EEMETAHEF 28 NEEBYH
BEREF ZEEERFRARTE - WERT
BEFERE - Htt B FIR B EIKM
RERBEEREE-

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group will internally assess the credit quality
of the potential customers and define appropriate
credit limit. Other receivables are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade LT AR R E HIR R WA B 2 FERI B
debtors presented based on the right to REGEBEAH25IME KRR
consideration became unconditional/invoice date at A

the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 30 days 30HA 26,163 43,724
31 - 60 days 31£60H 13,777 20,189
61— 90 days 61£90H 7.810 12,995
Over 90 days HiBo0H 25,767 15,384
73,517 92,292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 1 April 2018, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$62,026,000.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has concentration
of credit risk with 72.0% (2019: 87.9%) of the total
trade debtors was due from the Group’s three
(2019: five) largest customers.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s
trade debtors balances were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$16,125,000
(2019: HK$28,379,000) which were past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balance,
HK$8,316,000 (2019: HK$15,384,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on good payment records for those
debtors and/or continuous business with the Group.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of the impairment assessment on trade
debtors, and deposits and other receivables are set
out in note 37.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

21. B R R - EH& R AT RIEA

(&)

MA2018F4R1H BEF SN 2 BWERR
#£62,026,0005% T

202038318 REEEWR = (2019
F . H)ABEFZEWRRBENESE
B A72.0% (20195 :87.9% ) ©

72020538310 AEBEW R A
B IE A REE 516,125,000 7T (2019
% 128,379,000 5t) 2 EUWLBR X H R
HKEAHCER - EZERMEHRT

8,316,0005% 7T (20194 : 15,384,000
JU) EEH0 B L L MRIBEZEER
AR ERCHE HEFEEFE
MERER WAFEIRABEN - REEIL
BRZEAREEEMKRR-

BRABUART - 2 R H AL EUGKIRAYR
ERF AR ER LT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 458
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

Provision of design, supply
and installation of

RERE HERZERER
= fE AR 7%

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 22. 8VEERESVAER
LIABILITIES
2020 2019
20204 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fili 5T FHT
Contract assets ahEE

aluminium windows and

curtain walls services 42,314 50,531
Contract liabilities - o)-Ki
Provision of design, supply REZT HERZEREER

and installation of BRRE

aluminium windows and

curtain walls services - (926)

As at 1 April 2018, contract assets and contract
liabilities amounted to HK$66,933,000 and
HK$3,313,000, respectively.

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer
is netted off against retention money on a particular
contract basis and presented as contract liabilities.
For the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period, HK$979,000 (2019: HK$3,260,000)
is recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has rights to considerations from
customers for the provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for completion
of design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services and not yet
billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is
conditioned on factors other than passage of time.
Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade debtors when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage of
time.

The significant decrease of contract assets as at
31 March 2020 is the result of reclassification to
trade debtors. The significant decrease of contract
liabilities as at 31 March 2020 is the result of the
recognition of revenue in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets
and contract liabilities as stated above comprise
retention money of HK$35,364,000 (20109:
HK$36,171,000) as at 31 March 2020. As at 31
March 2020, the balances included retention
money from related companies amounting to
HK$218,000 (2019: HK$195,500). The companies are
related companies in which CCM Trust and certain
discretionary trusts have beneficial interests.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

22. SVEERSVWER &)

RAEERRERAOFFRHAR HERR
RKinERBEREWIRAE - NEEEE
HEikiaE R EfEReT - HERZERE
i WERRE - B AR RBAES QM AR
5 BRZEFBURR S BRA 2 S E
A URESELSNEE -BACHE
RRAANEENEFNEERNBEERNK
RERM (KERERN BEH I RE
FE U 8RR °

202038310 N EERERD
FREREH S EZ R - 1202053
B318  &HEABEEERY  FEERE
£2020F3A31HIEFEEEEPREIU
mATEke

FREHNEEREHNEENIREES
BERES  H2020F38310 ' RE £
#35,364,0007% 7T (20194 : 36,171,000
BIT) 202038310 BB AT
RE £ B4 £2218,0008 5T (20194
195,500/ 7T ) ° CCM Trust & T BB
ARZEBH AR EEERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and
represented the monies withheld by customers of
contract works fully recoverable within 1 to 2 years
from the date of completion of respective design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls services projects in accordance
with the terms specified in the relevant contracts.
Upon satisfactory completion of the installation
works of whole project as set out in the contract,
the architect for the building project will issue a
practical completion certificate. Generally, upon
the issuance of the practical completion certificate,
half of the retention money of such project will be
released to the Group, while the remaining half will
be released to the Group upon the issuance of the
certificate that identified defects in respect of the
entire building project have been made good. This
amount of retention money is included in contract
assets until the end of the defect liability period
as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment
is conditional on completion of defect liability
period. The Group is responsible, at its own costs,
for remedial works that may arise from defective
works or materials used. The defect liability period
serves as an assurance that the construction services
performed comply with agreed-upon specifications
and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its
normal operating cycle. The retention money does
not have any significant financing component for
financing benefit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 22. 8VWEERESVAER &)
LIABILITIES (continued)

The retention money is to be settled at the end of REEBREREMRZOT ARG
each reporting period as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

On demand or within one year RERHR—FR 26,949 12,545

After one year R—F% 8,415 23,626

35,364 36,171

Details of the impairment assessment on contract BHEENEE ZRENGFBRRM T

assets are set out in note 37. 37 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

ia y=\
7 (W }

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

23. BITHBREAS

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate ranged from 0.01% to 2.65% (2019: 0.01% to
2.45%) per annum as at 31 March 2020.

At 31 March 2020, bank balances and cash
of HK$4,305,000 (2019: HK$10,185,000) were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) which is not
a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated
by the PRC government and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below.

ROTEREBESARERBEEZRER
EARZHEA=ZEAIUT ZEHR
TER ZEFHN2020638318#%
N F0.01%%2.65% (20195 : 0.01% =
2.45% ) N ERIRGHE o

M2020F3A318 RBITEBRES A
4,305,000 7T (20194 : 10,185,0005&
L) UARE (TAR®])HE AR
FAIEEBE TS LEHABR  ARMER
SHEBNEE MEZSESEATESE
v BESTHEBNERKNINEEH

LB EEER 2 HEERUIIZE
S RTESRRREEHIIMT -

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

United States Dollar (“USD") Ex([ExX]) 10 10
Euro (“EUR") &t (TBRT ) 7 7
RMB ARHE 527 564

Details of the impairment assessment on bank
balances are set out in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BRI BREMEMSNRIE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FilT FiBT
Trade payables FE 1 BRFX 4,246 10,013

Retention payable — amount

BAREE - —FREMNZE

;IE

payable within one year 11,560 12,752
Accrued costs for FEGHE R TR A
construction work 9,393 13,740
Accrued operating costs EtEENETREA
and charges 1,816 1,879
Accrued staff costs i =N 8,735 12,418
Accrued listing expenses st ETER - 2,566
Rental deposits received BWESRS 444 444
Value-added tax payables FEASIBE D 662 -
36,856 53,812

The credit period on purchase of goods and
payment for subcontractors’ works is ranged from 0
to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

EBEEORIEEIERREMNRZEE
HF0ZE90H

AR Z R DT REZTHREHR 2
HREAMHMT

2020 2019

20205 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within 30 days 308 1,115 4,122
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,559 1,491
61 - 90 days 61290H 71 1,562
Over 90 days iR 1,501 2,838
4,246 10,013

ESEBEERBIRAS 2019/2020 F iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

25. PROVISIONS 25. & i
The Group's provisions are analysed for reporting AEBZBENRERENVFEZI A
purposes as: T
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Current liabilities REERE 12,383 33,666
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 55,797 61,589
68,180 95,255
The movement of the Group’s provisions are as TEEREBEEBUOT
follows:

Provision for
Warranty rectification

provision work Total

RIEEH BUTEER |k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHERT
At 1 April 2019 20194818 40,935 54,320 95,255
Additions nE 3,485 13,658 17,143
Utilisation A (2,348) (16,912) (19,260)
Interest expense F B & H 1,724 - 1,724
Reversal B [E (9,325) (17,357) (26,682)
At 31 March 2020 72020563H31H 34,471 33,709 68,180
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

PROVISIONS (continued)

The warranty provision represents management'’s
best estimate of the Group’s liability under the
warranty period, mainly for a period of maximum of
15 years from the end of the defect liability period
for provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services. The
estimated cost of work is determined based on
size of the project, relevant correspondences and
contracts with customers and management’s prior
experience on warranty claim in the past.

The provision for rectification work relates to the
cost of work to be carried out for rectification of
aluminium windows and curtain walls supplied
to the Group’s customers during the defect
liability period, mainly for a period of maximum
of 2 years, based on size of the project, relevant
correspondence and contracts with customers
and management’s prior experience with the
consideration of the rectification work claim in the
past. These amounts have not been discounted
for the purpose of measuring the provision for
rectification work because the effect is not material.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED
COMPANY

The balance represents the amount due to Hanison
Construction (BVI), the then immediate holding
company prior to Listing, was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

25.

26.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

s =)

REEBHEEEBHAKENREMHEE
K&ia 2 Rt - R 2 ERERRIEH
FrEdg c EEEHMREG  REHE
ERMBEFPERR -REREISF
AVHARE o (5T I TRCARTIIRIBIR B AR AR -
HEFPWHEBRARENUREERES
BBERERRZBELSHMEE -

BYTIRBBIRAEENREEEN
WREEFRHZEERFRETEXR
MiETRA (RIBEE SRR EEFHE
BARHERENUREEEARBEER
TRARREZBEICRMETE) - RfE
SEEHEER-—BRERRE2FNHE A
REEZELTER  HZE SRR
AAERNTREBMEETRE

FE £ — R B B 2 T R IR

%5 8235 FE Y Hanison Construction (BVI)
(EMAIzEREEZRAR)WEIKR
B RERBEREREENIE

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27.#HEAR
2020
2020
HK$'000
THET
Lease liabilities payable EREARAR
Within one year R—FR 102
Within a period of more than one year R —FETHEBWFHRE
but less than two years 49
Within a period of more than two years RBBEMFEFBBREFELB
but not more than five years 24
175
Less: Amount due for settlement with 128 B R BB E VIR
12 months shown under current (RARBEETIIR)
liabilities (102)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B B R B E B
12 months shown under (RERBEBETHIR)
non-current liabilities 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28.iEEFRIF

MEIGFEEMBARRERMS - B TELER
HEEREECHEEE RUBRER
AVETIR AE BT TR AR BRFTERY D AT 20T

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TiBxT

Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 56 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEEE (101) (85)
(45) (85)

RAFERE-—FE AEEEZRELEHR
H(EREERHEEBHIIMT

The followings are the major deferred tax
(liabilities) assets of the Group and movements
thereon during the current and prior year:

ECL
provision
of trade
Accelerated debtors and
tax contract
depreciation  Tax losses assets Total
& Mt R 3R Bt
BNREDN
b E 1R U AAES
e RAGE SR %0 et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHERT FHET
At 1 April 2018 H2018F481H (388) 357 190 159
Charge to profitor ~ #EZF K
loss (note 13) (PFFEE13) (138) (99) (7) (244)
At 31 March 2019 M2019F3A31H (526) 258 183 (85)
Credit (charge) to FFAEE
profit or loss (REZOKR)
(note 13) (FFEE13) 226 (226) 40 40
At 31 March 2020 7M202063A31H (300) 32 223 (45)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 S Bil 5% #R = Ml 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BZ2020F3A310LLFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 28.BEEMIEA (&)

At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$313,000 (2019: HK$1,685,000)
available for offset against future profit. As at
31 March 2020, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$191,000
(2019: HK$1,563,000) of such losses. As at 31 March
2020, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining approximately HK$122,000
(2019: HK$122,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. All the unrecognised tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

M2020%F3A831H AEBXREBH 2
Fi 18 B 48 49 5313,00058 7T (20194 :
1,685,00058 T ) » A] f# A LUIK 85 R 3R 0%
Ao A2020F3831H CREBEEY
191,000 7T (20194 : 1,563,00078 T )
BRIELRIEE E - 120205638318 >
FA A ESATRORI R MR TR - S0 2 o R
#9122,0005% 7T (20194 : 122,0005% 7T)
BRELEHIEEE -IBABERBIEEE
AR AR AL uE o

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. & &
Number Share
Notes of shares capital
MEE Bin& B B*x
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of SRMEE.I1EBTZERAR
HK$0.1 each
Authorised: EE
At 31 March 2018 2018%F3H31H 3,800,000 380
Increase on FA20195 28228 11N
22 February 2019 (i) 4,996,200,000 499,620
As at 31 March 2019 and 20193831 K
31 March 2020 202053 A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EERITRHE:
At 31 March 2018 7A2018F3H31H 100 -
Issue of shares BITR M (i) 436,332,530 43,633
At 31 March 2019 and 20193 H318 K
31 March 2020 20203 H31H 436,332,630 43,633
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29.

30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to written resolutions passed by the sole
shareholder of the Company on 22 February 2019,
the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$500,000,000 by
the creation of 4,996,200,000 additional new shares
of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company.

(ii) On 14 March 2019, 436,332,530 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company were allotted and
issued to Hanison Construction (BVI) at par for the
Listing at a cash consideration of HK$43,633,000. The
new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares in issue. On 19 March 2019, the
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into a new lease agreement for the use
of a car parking space for 3 years. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised HK$150,000
of right-of-use asset and HK$150,000 of lease
liability.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

29.

30.

31.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

BRE =
B &

(i) RE\EARQTMHE—RERNR2019F2H22H
BBNEEREER  SERAQTRA
Fh4,996,200,0000% & IR EI{E0.1;8 7t 2
HFRB%E » RDBEERZH380,00078
JT3% 1 Z500,000,00058 JT

(i) FA2019F38 148 AATR ELHEE
{E [@Hanison Construction (BVI)E: 2%
& % 17436,332,530R & IR E{H0.178
T2 E B B &R EA43,633,000/F
T BRITHRMNEFEYIERSE
EEITROAEEREZ A H20195F
3A19B AR AR REERFTER L
e

FBREXH

REZ2020F38318ILFE  NEEH
FREEN LAP=FHHERHZ-
REERGRK AEERIAEHEEE
150,0005% Jt & 2 & & &150,00078 T ©

EEHARIE
FREFSEREA

AEBREBE A JHELERAEREZA
RREASVTRIMBERDT

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET

—FR

Within one year

77

In the second to fifth year inclusive BEELF (BREEWSF) 55

132
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. BEHE&IE =)
(Continued)
The Group as lessor TREESHEA
Minimum lease payments receivables on leases are HExERKWHEERNRAT:
as follows:
2020
2020%F
HK$'000
THET
Within one year —FR 1,166
The Group had contracted with leasees for the AEBCITNZHEZ R RERBEN
following future minimum lease payments: M
2019
2019%
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —FR) 1,555
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFEDLF (BREEEWME) 1,166
2,721
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

PERFORMANCE BONDS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction
contracts amounting to HK$104,954,000 (2019:
HK$110,559,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme

Pursuant to Hanison’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted and became
effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors),
full-time employees and consultants of Hanison, its
subsidiaries and its associated companies are eligible
to participate in the Scheme.

According to the Scheme, the board of directors of
Hanison may at its discretion grant options to the
eligible participants of Hanison, its subsidiaries and
its associated companies to subscribe for shares in
Hanison.

32.

33.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

BHRES

202038310 REBMEBES YT
B2 AENBLYRES E104,954,0008
7t (20194 : 110,559,000 7T ) °

LEMBEROARES

RSB fE T &

RiEEBOBRESTS ([et®) (R
201MF9OR2IHERMRER)  BES-
HBE A RREBERRZBES (8
BBMNFHITES) 2RESREBY
B2 REE 2B

RiEZTE BBESS BRI EE -
HB LR RABENR 2R ERSH
ERHABEBRONOBRE

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

BZ2020F3A310LLFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

ia y=\
7 (W }

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

33. LIRS ERMARE SR (&)

The following tables disclose movements in the
share options granted to the directors of the
Company (including executive directors and non-

MRz iEst® (2)

TRIFENEZ20195F3A31ALFER
BEBNZTEARTFARATNES (B
HTESHEIHTES) RAEBEEN

executive directors) and employees of the Group BRENZEBER -
under the Scheme of Hanison during the year ended
31 March 2019.
Exercise  Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Category of Date Exercise price as at during the as at
participants of grant period per share 1 April 2018 period 18 March 2019*
120185 120195
4B1H 3A18H
BREFY #HEH frEfiE  SRTER HRTE  REATE R ITE*
HK$
BT
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96* 282,500 (282,500) -
25 November 2019
3 2014118260 2014F11A260 %
20196118250
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 28,052,000 (27,749,500) 302,500
4 September 2022
201749R5H 2017469A5H %
2022F9AR4H
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 14,125 - 14,125
25 November 2019
E& 2014F11426A 20145118268 %
2019F 114250
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 394,000 (351,000) 43,000
4 September 2022
201759A5H 2017%9A58 2
2022F9R4H
28,742,625 (28,383,000) 359,625
* |t represents the date before the Listing. *  ZAMABLEWmAI—XKe
# It represents the last adjusted exercise price per # ZERARBRRARERITERE-
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to certain directors of
the Company by Hanison were for their services
provided to the Group, Hanison and certain fellow
subsidiaries of the Company before the Listing. In
addition, the Group also shared employee resources
with other fellow subsidiaries. The amount of
equity-settled share-based payments in relation to
the share options granted to the directors of the
Company, employees of the Group, employees of
Hanison and fellow subsidiaries of the Company
were allocated to the Group according to the
extent of their time and resources spent on the
services provided to the Group. No share options
were granted or exercised during the year ended
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 and no share
options were outstanding as at 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019.

Details of fair value measurement of share options
granted during the year ended 31 March 2019 was
disclosed in Hanison’s annual report dated 26 June
2018.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

3. LIRS ERBFARE R (&)

MR iEst® (2)

KRARETEERFEER LTAIALRE
B EBERAQTETRAKMB QTR
MR MEEBR TERE L K
SETEEMRRANBARXZANE
BRoBRFAQAES AEBES  HE
RAABRAMB AR ESNEREN
HEUAEREERDAERN SR
REHEAREERUERKMIEENR
BRERDEFAKE - REZ£20205F3
B31HK2019F3831HLEE 8K
H e ITERE AR RE > 307420203 A31H K
2019F3A3MANEBREERITE-

REBZE2019F383MBLELEE CEBER
B2 AFETEFBHENEFAHA
201856 H26 H I E IR A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share award scheme

On 28 July 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), Hanison
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain
persons (“Eligible Persons”), including employees
and directors of Hanison and its subsidiaries, and
to give incentives to them in order to retain them
for the continuing operation and development of
Hanison and its subsidiaries, and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of Hanison and
its subsidiaries. Subject to any early termination as
may be determined by directors of Hanison, the
Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for 3
years from the Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the board of
directors of Hanison may, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion, select any Eligible Persons to
participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be
granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period
for the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Share Award Scheme.

The following tables disclose movements in the
share awards granted to the directors of the
Company (including executive directors and non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group
under the Share Award Scheme during the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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33. LIRS ERMARE SR (&)

B 173 5% W &1 &

95 72201678280 ([H#MBEH )
Pran— E IR 40 R B aT &) ([ AR {5 58 Wy &t
B URBETAL (TERBEBALD
(BREBERENBLARZEERES)
EH 2 ERIE RS A TRE  #ELiR SR
RERBBRABREWB QR ZIFEE
BRERND  RAEBRAWEARE
—HBRRNCISEAB BRIFEBEEA
BERERAALL - BRIR M R BT BB R
MEME=FRERRER-

RIER M RBTE BEBEESS TN
EREMBEEIMNSERALIEAEER
SRESERDREE  WEEHR
MR1D 5B B AR R AR A R 40 55 1B 1
[ - A IR REDET &I T8 2 R R Ak
PR 752 PR

TREEREZ2019F3A31BILFER
BERAEBTEEFAAAES (B
BITERHEFHITES) RAEEREEN
RERONEBER-



33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

3. LIRS ERBFARE R (&)

Share award scheme (Continued) B in sE st & (&)
Number Number
of share of share
awards awards
outstanding Vested outstanding
Category of as at during as at
participants Date of grant Vesting date 1 April 2018 the period 18 March 2019*
20185 120195
4818 3R18H
BIEMZ BAEMZ
SREFH RIEBH HEAH ZRROEE RENEE  REBROZE*
Directors 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 25,982,000 (25,982,000) -
£z 2017%3R10H 201856 A30H
Employees 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 293,000 (293,000) -
&S 2017434108 201856 430H
26,275,000 (26,275,000) -
* It represents the date before the Listing. *  ZEMALEWAI—XK-

Share awards granted to certain directors of
the Company by Hanison were for their services
provided to the Group, Hanison and certain fellow
subsidiaries of the Company before the Listing. In
addition, the Group also shared employee resources
with other fellow subsidiaries. The amount of
equity-settled share-based payments in relation to
the share awards granted to the directors of the
Company, employees of the Group and employees
of Hanison and fellow subsidiaries of the Company
were allocated to the Group according to the extent
of their time and resources spent on the services
provided to the Group. The Group recognised a
total expense of approximately HK$2,460,000 (2020:
nil) during the year ended 31 March 2019.

ARARETESERFERER LTRAIALRE
B EERAQATNETRRAMB AR
RENEREMEEBE FTRERKR D 1
S AEBREEMEIRMBAREZA
HER-BRFALARNES FEEHESE
R R AN B ERME D BESWEE
BROMNERUESEEROGAERNE
NEDRBESEAARSERMRKE
BENRERERIETFTAEE REBZE
2019 3A3MA L FE  REERALHM
* #42,460,00078 7T (20204 : #&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant
payroll costs for each employee to the MPF Scheme,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 for the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$5,844,000 (2019: HK$5,491,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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34. B kiR FIEHE

FEEAEBERSERES S MER
EFTEFTEMEERAEBEEDR -
UZAAZRHNESTEAEE - AKE [
MRS EMERASESLIEEHER
EMAM5%E10%  BREERERSR
- ERREEr 8N S B AEARWA L
FR %30,0007& T °

REBENTEES S EFEBFEFN
BXEERABANE -ARERARTE
B B91E T B 20 B @R R AE AU R B
UABBERARMES -AEEERRK
BRAGHENEXEERAFHIEEHEK-

RERERNE R X5844,0008 T
(20194 : 5,491,000/8 7t ) I AN E B E IR
BRAGTEIR AT AN REAZETE
Z AR



35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

following transactions and balances with related
parties:

(a)

Transactions with Hanison and its subsidiaries, (a)

in which CCM Trust and certain discretionary

trusts continue to have beneficial interests

icl /Q
mwh O

A 35 $h % M 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

35. ABARS

BRERE B HmRAMB O WEE I KNE
BB S RS RARREIIWT

HEBREMBARET RS
CCM TrustR ZEFBIBETER LT
BBBEBNZERFTEEERE

subsequent to the Listing: m
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Design, supply and installation & B % B A T AR E &
of aluminium windows ERERs HER
and curtain walls services ZHERHEWA
income from subsidiaries
of Hanison 581 1,940
Equity-settled share-based B 5 AN A RE s AR B IR 19
payments charged by BEBRNTR
Hanison - 2,460
Management fee expenses  EEBEZ{FHEREA
paid to Hanison - 654
Operating lease expenses in [ EEFHB AR T2
respect of a car parking FEAKEHERX
space paid to a subsidiary (H$&Ei)
of Hanison (note i) N/ARE B 60
Rental income received from T UWEEKHE QT2
subsidiaries of Hanison el A (MFEE)
(note i) 1,555 1,555
Interest expenses on HEEEBEMNEMAX
lease liabilities 1 -
Lease liabilities due to a FEAS BB — R it /B 8 BRI HY
subsidiary of Hanison HEEE 51 N/ATiE A

e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with entities in which certain (b)
directors of Hanison have substantial interests

prior to the Listing. Subsequent to the Listing,

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, a director of the

Company, has substantial interest in the

entities.

35. MRS (&)

HEBETESNEHAEEPE
BEAEm ERETHRS L
mE ARAEEERBRENZ

i}
SEBHAE AN -

2020 2019
20204 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Design, supply and IRE KRR HER
installation of aluminium ZHERRBUA
windows and curtain walls
services income - 1,631
Operating lease expenses ENFEN2KEHERX
paid in respect of a car (MtaEi)
parking space (note i) N/ARE R 34
Interest expenses on HEABRNEMAX
lease liabilities 1 -
Expenses relating to EHEHHERENHEX
short-term leases 16 -
Lease liabilities (note ii) HEEE (M) 124 N/ATiE A
() Compensation of key management personnel (0 FEEEBABEZHM

FEEBAEBCHMNEARALNRES
KRR EEERNNFN HEBRIK
ERMEE12

Compensation of key management personnel
represents the remuneration of the directors
of the Company during both years, which is
disclosed in note 12.

Notes: BfgEE

(i) Details of operating lease commitments for () FABEASBARIHzLEHE
rental income and expenses are set out in note AIEFRERMEES -
31.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the (i) MEZE2020F3A31HLEFE K

SEERFEMTIRM=F
Z A W o

Group entered into a new lease agreement for
the use of a car parking space for 3 years.
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to its
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends
and issue of new shares and debts.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

36. R MBEREE

FEEEEHERURRFAEEANEE
BEALIFECE I AEE  ARTER
EYEBEESZBAREFEMARR
FHHREADR - AEEHRERBEE £—
FEBERFTE-

REENEARBEERERHE-

RAREZTEMMANEREE - ERIE
WMo ARPDEBEBEETRAK
HEXEESHBANER - RERNLTES
MER  AREREBIRYRERETH
BREHFENT XN FEREERER-

ESBEERBIRAST 2019/2020 F ¥R

229



230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. ¥ IR
Categories of financial instruments MBIAR
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FExT
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IREHER AR BB EE 374,065 398,723
Financial liabilities MHEAEB
At amortised cost R A AR 15,806 38,494
Financial risk management objectives and HMERBEEARRBE

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
debtors, deposits and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
amount due to a related company.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is
mainly HK$ and RMB, the currencies in which
most of the transactions are denominated.
The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets of the group
entities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 23.

The management of the Group considers that
the currency risk of those monetary assets
is not significant to the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

In addition, the carrying amount of the
foreign currency denominated inter-company
balances recorded in the statement of financial
position of the group entities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK 7

% ELBE

(i)

B

SEERZIEERIZRBIR
AR KRB RBHPUETRA
RETE SEBEENRREHRU
INEHECEREENREERE
RMiEE23 ©

FEEEEERRZEEREEN
ERRRHAEEMSEREK.
ANEEE B Ay SN E R BOR - R
i BT B e B M B B 30 G A
BREREZEREPERIIE R -

AN RIBEHRREEERM K
RRFRARRAINEHEN AR BE
ERAVEREELNT :

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#T FET

RMB against HK$ ARMBHET (23,336) (48,184)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rate of RMB against HK$. The
financial impact on the exchange differences
arising from foreign currency of HK$ against
RMB is expected to be insignificant to the
Group. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in
respective functional currency (i.e. HK$) against
the relevant foreign currency (i.e. RMB). 10%
is the sensitivity rate used which represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in a foreign exchange
rate. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 10% change in a foreign
currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
HK$ strengthens 10% against RMB. For a 10%
weakening of HK$ against RMB, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax profit and the amount below would be
negative.

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK &7

miEEE (&)

(i)

Emb ()

AEEFEZAREZBTESRRK
BT E - FEHBTAARBNE
HERERNMBFEHAEDR
MEXAEKR TERFAVNAREBE
ThEeE® (BNET) HABRASNE (BD
ARE) EART BR10% 5 19 SRk
Eo10% BB BT INEEZET
BEHIR 2 SRS BT AR
EhtE BEEDNESEUINE
FHEZAREBTEMEE  HRER
BRI0%INEE RSB AZIBRE L
TEHEXRTBTAAREAEIO%
R BRI IEINE B TR
ARBEE10% SEHRHREE
MERSEENEREE BTiHS
BEiAEH-

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T FER

RMB against HK$ ARBHEEBT 1,949 4,023
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to lease liabilities (see note 27 for
details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate and
variable-rate bank balances (see note 23 for details).
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. The directors of the Company
continuously monitor interest rate exposure and
will consider enter into interest rate hedging should
the need arise. The directors considered the Group's
exposure of the bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets at amortised cost and contract
assets recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regards, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade debtors and contract assets based on
provision matrix.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK 7

FlEE e

RAEBEBEERE (FHRME27) iR
DNHEFNRER AEETRER TR
RITHEER (B RMEE23) MERR SR
B A R @ fg o 78 5 B3R B 3 4 R R
HR -ARNRESHEERFREAR I
EREFERZREPNR-EERH
AEBRTHESKEEHRZARIL FE
R B I 2 5 U E 2 4 o

15 S5 B B Bt ik 4 B i

AEERSFLAREBTEHEMAEA
SEERMBRANEREERRD 5
REFEMBRR KT CHRIDIZEH R
R ENEREERENEENIREE

AEEERBEERE FAEEEEES
Zk—<EBREEEERFERE FEH
BRHMEREF BERNRETH
DI E B ER St = - AEEEE
BRS ARENFERMBEZRE Lt
v AEERBERBEEERENIZRE
JEEHEUWIRR RGN EEETRERT
flre
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37. MBI R &)
BERBREBRHERBEK &)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERREFS (&)
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

REBHNRIBEERRFTRTEEEN

comprises the following categories: TR :
Internal credit Other
rating Description Trade debtors/contract assets financial assets
A {5 & R B BRER SHRE Rttt R E
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts
15 B XEHFHEYERRE EBETAANE REFEVRNEESE REARBEERHE
£y -k EERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
ERLE EBEARERIMAAER BE-RAZPE BEFESRDEESE REARHBEERE
B2ELEE -FEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
A5k FEBANDERAANFRFESANREINR BEAFENANEEESE EEGENRNEERE
FERBREEEREM -FEERE - FEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BE FRBBRTEECEENE EEGENRNEERE-FE EEFERRREE
HE BR-EEHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor  Amount is written off Amount is written
is in severe financial difficulty and off
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
sH FREEBRTEBARRBENBRERAE FUEEMHE HIEEHE

In addition, the Group has applied different loss
rates to the internal credit rating category according
to the classification and nature of respective

36 S E R R Bl SRR A AT e

hle

o AEECRESVBEEN T ER
HERETEBEREREREENR

financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

icl /Q
mwh O

i 3% #R % M 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B ZE2020F3A318LFE

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREE &)

ERERER R ETE (&)

THRALRBEAMEEBRN L 2EE
EMBEEEFERR:

assessment:
External  Internal
credit  credit 12m or
Notes rating  rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
MIEE  RABEE REAREEGFES
Mzt AR AR HHEEESR BE#E
2020 2019
20205 2019%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT = TAR | T TEX
Trade debtors - contract Lifetime ECL
with customers 21 N/A  Low risk - not credit impaired 60,351 76,349
EEGENEHEE
EYERS-HEFTA TER HER BE-FEEHE
Lifetime ECL -
N/A  Watch list not credit impaired 5,187 16,792
EEGENEHEEHER-
THER EREE FEERE
Lifetime ECL
N/A" Doubtful - not credit impaired 8,792 37
BEGENEHEE
TER W8 BE-FEEHE
Lifetime ECL
N/A  Loss - credit impaired 749 75,079 - 93,178
BEGENESHEE
TER BB BE-FERHE
Lifetime ECL
Contract assets 22 N/A  Low risk - not credit impaired 39,254 42,666
EEGENEHEE
ENEE TER BER BE-FEEHE
Lifetime ECL
N/A  Watch list - not credit impaired - 7,482
EEGENEHEE
TR EREEB BE-FEEHE
Lifetime ECL
N/A  Doubtful - not credit impaired 3,664 42,918 831 50,979
BEGENEHEE
TER W8 BE-FEEHE

ESEBEERBIRAS 2019/2020 F iR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK &7

ERERREREEFE (&

(Continued)
External  Internal
credit  credit 12m or
rating  rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
MIEE  REBEE RMEARBEFES
BE EHEERE EEAE
2020 2019
2020F 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TER THER
Deposits N/A  Low risk 12m ECL 598 221
%&e TER EER REAESEERSR
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2,259 1,562
Hit R TER HER REREHEERE
Bank balances Aorabove  NA 12m ECL 297,577 303,981
RATEE ARELLE  TER RMEREHEERE

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL for trade debtors
and contract assets.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group applies internal credit ratings for its
customers. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade debtors
and contract assets which are assessed based on
provision matrix within lifetime ECL.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade debtors — gross carrying amount

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B ZE2020F3A318LFE

37. MBI R #
HERBREBRHERRKEK &

ERERERBEEFE &)

FEW AR — A AR ET (6

2020 2019
20204 20195
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate debtors loss rate debtors
FHYERE BWER | THUEER JE W BR R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FExT
Internal credit rating RS B R
Low risk AN 1.2% 60,351 0.9% 76,349
Watch list EREE 2.4% 5,187 1.4% 16,792
Doubtful CI}- 3.5% 8,792 2.0% 37
Loss EE 57.6% 749 - -
75,079 93,178
Contract assets — gross carrying amount EREE-HBREE
2020 2019
20204 20195
Average Contracts Average Contracts
loss rate assets loss rate assets
FHYERE EHEE | THUFEXR BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEx
Internal credit rating REEEFTR
Low risk AN 1.2% 39,254 0.8% 42,666
Watch list EREE - - 1.3% 7,482
Doubtful AT &R 3.1% 3,664 1.5% 831
42,918 50,979
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated. The contract assets have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade debtors for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the loss rates
for trade debtors are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for contract assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
provided HK$566,000 and HK$772,000 (2019:
reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,922,000 and
HK$212,000) impairment allowance for trade
debtors and contract assets, respectively, based
on the provision matrix. Impairment allowance of
HK$431,000 (2019: reversal of impairment loss of
HK$3,316,000) were made on trade debtors with
credit-impaired.
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37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK &7

EREREREEFE &)

EITEBRRDIREEBAFHFHNE
EMEEENRME  URMBANHAS
FX AN 85 0 B A] 15 B9 AT BE 1 B R
E-EEETHEESA UBRREHNE
BAEEEBANEEEN SHNEENE
AEBoEHRBNRRSE  RERERER
RBEE-SHNERE-Ft XEBERA
RURRNEEERDSNEEBBREN
BEBL -

NEZE2020F3A831 B L FE  AEER
BREEEREVERRENEEDH
5112 8 {E &5 #8566,00058 7T K 772,00058
7 (20194 : Rl {E E5 18 1% 212,922,000/
JC % 212,000/ 7T ) © R E#15431,000%8
7C (20194 : B 1B /&5 B 8 [213,316,00078
70) IR BEERENEW R M IE L



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The following table shows the movements of
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade

£r 8 B 75 ¥R 2= Bl 5E
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

37. MBI R #
HERBREBRHERRKEK &

ERERREEFE (&

TRIVRRIBEH L ERR 2 BBIRTR R
BHEENREFENABEERES

debtors and contract assets under the simplified B!
approach:
Trade debtors Contract assets
U R =% SHEE
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime ECL not Lifetime
credit- ECL credit- credit- ECL credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired Total
EEFEY EEFEY BEEFEED BEFEY
FHGEEER RUGHER RUGHER #FUHGHEER
—-FEREE -EHEE -FEHEE -EHREE |t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL T TEL T
At 1 April 2018 MW2018F4A81H 492 3,548 660 - 4,700
Exchange adjustments EHAZE - (232) - - (232)
Impairment losses for HHBEE/GHEE
new financial assets/contract assets ~ R{EEE 871 - 351 - 1,222
Reversal of impairment losses BECRAZHE
recognised (note (i) B8 (M) (477) (3,316) (563) - (4,356)
At 31 March 2019 R201953A318 886 - 448 - 1,334
Exchange adjustments EHRZE (13) - - - (13)
Changes due to financial assets/ R201954 71 A B2 FE( B
contract assets recognised BEE/GHNEEZ
as at 1 April 2019: 28!
- Transfer to credit-impaired - ERZEEHE
(note (ii)) (BF=E (i) (1) 1 (5) 5 -
- Impairment losses recognised -CERRESE 3 113 160 488 764
- Reversal of impairment losses - BRI ERRERE
recognised (note (iii)) (BEEGi)) (652) - (246) - (898)
Reclassification BN E 123 - (123) -
Write-off g - - - (493) (493)
Impairment losses for new financial HUBER/ANER
assets/contract assets REFSE 785 317 370 - 1,472
At 31 March 2020 2020638310 1,131 431 604 - 2,166
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade debtor or a contract
asset when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
debtors or contract assets are over three years past
due, whichever occurs earlier.

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

The reversal of impairment losses for trade debtors
and contract assets existed at 1 April 2018 during
the year ended 31 March 2019 are mainly due to
settlement in full of trade debtors and contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$64,104,000
and HK$59,136,000, respectively.

Two trade debtors with gross carrying amounts of
HK$123,000 defaulted and transferred to credit-
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: nil).

The reversal of impairment losses for trade debtors
and contract assets existed at 1 April 2019 during
the year ended 31 March 2020 are mainly due to
settlement in full of trade debtors and contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$81,134,000
and HK$34,247,000, respectively.
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ERERRTEBAERBREM BN
BUYEERYWDRENAEE (BEEH
AERNBEERETLHERF) EEK
RRIAEHNEEAH=FUL (URET
ERE) R AEEMBEEVIRRREL
aE-

B aE:

0]

(i)

(iii)

REZ2019F3831ALEE  H#EH
R2018F4B 1A FENERERRE
HNEENRESBEDETEHRBELE
EIRME A E S B £64,104,0005 T K
59,136,0008 TR EW R R EHNEE
Frs e

MEZE2020F3A831BLFE -MER
H4{E £123,000/8 TR BRI E 8
YW ERZEFEERE (2019F 1 &) -

REZ2020F3831ALEE  #E
R22019F4B 1B FENERERRE
HNEENRESBEDTEHREBELE
EIRMEAE D B 581,134,000 T K
34,247,000 THEWERRREHNEE
Frs e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the management of the Group has obtained
understanding to the credit background of the
debtors and deposits and undertaken the internal
credit approval process. The Group applies internal
credit rating for its debtors and deposits and makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. No allowance for impairment was
made since the management of the Group considers
that the probability of default is minimal after
considering the counterparties’ repayment history.

Bank balances

For the purpose of internal credit risk management,
the Group mainly transacts with banks with
high credit ratings and regularly monitors the
international credit rating of the counterparties.
The Group assessed 12m ECL on bank balances by
reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. No allowance for impairment was
made since the management of the Group consider
that the probability of default is negligible as such
amounts are receivable from or placed in banks
with high credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK 7

ERERERBEEFE &)

Bt ERFHERIZE

ERAEBEERBEREN 32 A&
EEERECD T HEBURRAREENONE
EESRAERBEEFHESF AKE
REHBUERERRZEEARIEETR
TREFBELEELE BEERKATE
ZEERBENAEMTER HHEMENK
FRIR R A2 & 1Y B UR [ 1 E H A AT M B EF
- BEELRERE FERAEEE
BEEITZRUFINERELRARE
R AT BB

RITAEER

RABEERBEENS  ARETEN
SEEFRNRTETRZ L EHER
HFTNEREEFR - AEEZ2ZER
BEANTEERERERERINIBEE
ARBBIBRGNAEREETNERE
BOHRTERETREAAHREES
BRME - EEFHRERE  RERAE
EEEERARENNIRMEMTEMY

LE B 2R B s 7 A A S BR 5 B RF AR B4R
Rt BB S EERTRARITAIIERE
EETAE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019/2020

1 ¥% $R %= M 5

37. MBI R &)

MERRERERREEK &7

i Bh 39 & R BR

EEERBDESERK  AEBEERE
RFEERRAALEERHESKENRE
ZRERREEE 2K FRBERER
RE R ZZE

T 3R B AN B [ B A 1 E B SRR AR RO B
BEE2ENORRIEA - HRIEITER
BEE WRIDIBREAEETREFEEER
ZREABZUBEEARMBRESRE
R HMIITE M B R E 2 2H B RIER
EERAYEE -ZRBEANERAER
TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B ZE2020F3A318LFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37Z. MBI R (&

Financial risk management objectives and MERREEARRBE &
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R (&)
Weighted On
average  demand or Total
effective less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year years years  cash flow amount
miEFsy BEX )
ERflZ BAE-% -EmE BELE HeReE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TER TER TER TER
As at 31 March 2020 12020534318
Non-derivative financial FIERRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B RS REMENTE - 15,806 - - 15,806 15,806
Lease liabilities HERE 49 109 54 27 190 175
15,915 54 27 15,996 15,981
As at 31 March 2019 12019634318
Non-derivative financial FERBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables RS R E M EMNFE - 25331 - - 25,331 25,331
Amount due to a related Ef-HEEARRE
company - 13,163 - - 13,163 13,163
38,494 - - 38,494 38,494
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

3. MERBELECARCZHIER

TRHAJNAGEEREXKELE 2 RER
B BRRERFRESLD MEXKE
E2BEDNEAERERIARARASRR

FEEGRREERERTIEARMES

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BEER BB
the Group'’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
Amount due
to immediate Amount due
holding  to a related Dividends Lease
company company payable liabilities Total
&£ et
ER2E — I A 3
[ERE NGE] B2 HEAR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TET FBT TER
At 1 April 2018 #2018%4A1H 77,452 - - - 77,452
Financing cash flows MERTR (64,289) - - - (64,289)
Reclassification BEHNE (13,163) 13,163 - - -
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3A31H - 13,163 - - 13,163
Adjustment upon EREBHMBREEL

application of HKFRS 16 165 2 A (HiEE2)

(note 2) - - - 110 110
At 1 April 2019 #2019564A18 - 13,163 - 110 13,273
Financing cash flows HMERER - (13,163) (13,963) (85) (27,211)
Dividend declared 2EIRKE - - 13,963 - 13,963
New lease entered 2R uHHEE - - - 150 150
Interest expenses FIERX - - - 2 2
Interest paid BFE - - - @ ¥
At 31 March 2020 72020434311 - - - 175 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £i S fif 5 ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVE

39. FLNFIMBRREE G 8

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TiBT

Non-current asset ERBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—REME QR EDR 280,000 280,000

Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURE B A Bl FE 78,183 71,752
Bank balances RITHER 674 495
78,857 72,247
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables HAh PR I8 1,004 3,372
Amount due to a related company FE{} — R H A B FIE - 13,163
1,004 16,535
Net current assets REEEEE 77,853 55,712
357,853 335,712

Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital %N 43,633 43,633
Reserves ] 314,220 292,079
357,853 335,712

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 26 June 2020 and is signed on its
behalf by:

CHUK KIN LUN
i 2
DIRECTOR
EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &8 Bil % R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. X NTFIMBERARRGEMR (&)
OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVE

(Continued)
Note:Movements in reserves of the Company: MisE: ARDTEHEEE:
Accumulated
Other (losses)
reserve profit Total
Rt (BR)
H fth & it il &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 2018548 1H - (3,934) (3,934)
Loss and total comprehensive FEEEREZESZ HEEE
expense for the year - (22,630) (22,630)
Capital contribution from REEZEZERATRNIE
immediate holding company 318,643 - 318,643
At 31 March 2019 and R2019F3A8318 &
1 April 2019 20194818 318,643 (26,564) 292,079
Profit and total comprehensive FEZEFI K MUK AHLER
income for the year - 36,104 36,104
Dividends paid (note 14) ERE (HEE14) (5,236) (8,727) (13,963)
At 31 March 2020 72020563 A31H 313,407 813 314,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. B 2 FI TS
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 A B 720208 201938318 2 B
March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: NEIFBWOT :
Place of Issued and fully Equity interests
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment  operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BEMmL BRTREBERT
MEAFREE BRI R BRI EREF FAF ML E TEEH
2020 2019

20205 20195

Heroic Elite Investments Limited British Virgin Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BEREBRAT Islands ("BVI") &% 1%57 REER
RBELHE
([XER%
#Bl)
Million Hope Industries BVI Hong Kong US$35,897,437 100% 100% Investment holding
(BVI) Limited RERZES B 35,897,437% T REER
Million Hope Industries (HK) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% 100% Design, supply and
XTEX(BR) 3 BB 11,000,000 7T installation of

aluminium windows
and curtain walls

Rt HERZRBER

B
Million Hope (BVI) Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRLHS TR (EVH REER
Paramount Forward Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BEBRAR REELES BB 1%57 REZR
Rich Victory (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
#HAE (FB)BRAF Bi# BB 18T NERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bil ¥% ¥k 2 Bl 5

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

FO

R THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
B Z2020F3A831HLLFE

40. BB A FI#1E (&)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and fully Equity interests
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment ~ operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
EMm BRITREERE
WELERE ARk ERMR gEmEx ERTEEGRE FERH
2020 2019
20205 20195
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
FBERAF B Bl BT REBR
Waller Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
REELEE BB (EVH REBRR
Garden City Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
RERZBEE BE (EVH BT
Million Hope New-Tech Building PRC PRC HK$65,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
Supplies (Huizhou) Limited FE FE 65,000,00058 7T aluminium windows
(note ii) and design, supply
EEFRBEME (BN BRAF and installation of
(B agii) aluminium windows
SERBE R HEREE
BE
ESBEIZIRBIRLS 2019/2020 F iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
BZ2020F3A310LLFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

41.

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Other than Million Hope Industries (BVI) Limited,
which is directly held by the Company, all other
companies are indirectly held by the Company.

(ii)  The subsidiary is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at any time during both years or
outstanding at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") since the beginning of 2020 is a fluid
and challenging situation facing all the industries of
the society including the construction sectors. The
Group has conducted a high level assessment on
the overall impact of the situation on the financial
position of the Group and taken all possible
effective measures to limit and keep the impact in
control. The Group will keep continuous attention
on the change of situation and make timely
response and adjustments in the future.
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(i) MBRAQTEEIFE ZMillion Hope
Industries (BVI) Limited¥h ' i H b
AEHHRARQTBEZE -

(i) ZMEBLARR-—BIEHBELERK.

S AT ] B B /1 B 7 W 8 £F FE i1 1T ] B
2 T B 75 7% H5 5 R 20205 K 2019
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bl $5 ik 2

AEEREAAEFRFE2CHREER
EERGEHRZHRINT  DEEALFHRK
ARAT AHAH20195F2H288 2 L XAl
ZERTRIERE -

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from this annual report and the accountants’
report as contained in the listing document of the
Company dated 28 February 2019 is shown below.

Year ended 31 March

HEANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20195 20185 20175 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET T TEx T
RESULTS £ 4|
Revenue l§ 299,794 376,621 421,146 501,938 367,768
Profit before taxation BRBLADEF 28,181 28,254 64,950 67,050 35,139
Taxation HE (3,941) (5.372) (14,838) (11,713) (3,875)
Profit for the year EERA 24,240 22,882 50,112 55,337 31,264
As at 31 March
®3A31R
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20195 20184 201746 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET T#x TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Total assets EEMBE 621,687 672,059 383,118 410,785 167,459
Total liabilities BENE (106,805) (163,241) (254,426) (335,361) (144,140)
Total equity R BE 514,882 508,818 128,692 75,424 23,319
Notes: MisT :

(1) On 1 April 2018, the Group had applied HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, certain information for the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2017 which was prepared under HKAS
39 may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March

2018, 2019 and 2020.

(2) On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16.
Accordingly, certain information for the years ended 31
March 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 which was prepared
under HKAS 17 may not be comparable to the year ended

31 March 2020.

(1) R2018F4R818  AEECEHABBH KR

A

A==~

|

58955 - H It - RIBF B ST

#B5839

FEHE 2B E2016F K2017F3A31HIEF
EzETERTEELEE E20185F 2019
FER2020F3A831BELEEZE TER ML

e

(2) M2019F4818 - AEBEHAE BT KR

~

Als1e5k - E M IRIEFES

5 8 55

Al ==X

17 RE B E20165F 2 2017F 2018F &
2019 3A31BIEEE2E TER JE L
EEZE2020F3831B L FE A TELRMAL

e
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FTEMERE

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR
RENTAL PURPOSES

A. gﬁ&?%#ﬂi&ﬁﬁl&lﬁﬁ

Attributable

WAZABJK LM NKPK [EIE))
i EE S5 P50 P5 195 2 B {3

PROPERTY HELD FOR OWN USE IN
MAINLAND CHINA

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions mE property xEMHE of lease
B (FAR) MENE BhES iR
1. OfficesC, D, E,F G &H on 5,633 Commercial 100% Medium-term
20/F, Kings Wing Plaza 1, (Marketing lease
3 On Kwan Street, Shatin, gross floor
New Territories, Hong Kong area)
BB DHREHIR 5,633 [GES 100% RHEAFA A
RiES —H (ATERESE
208 2 W AEC D E~FGRH Hi&)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE IN B. RERBIEHEZEAYDE
HONG KONG
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions [k property AEH of lease
#Bin (FHR) MERMEH BiLES HBER
1. OfficesA, B, J, K, L, M, N & Pon 9,348 Commercial 100% Medium-term
20/F, and car parking space (Marketing lease
numbers P50 and P51 on gross floor
Basement Floor, area)
Kings Wing Plaza 1,
3 On Kwan Street, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong
A D H R B3N 9,348 (EES 100% RHEAFA A
RinES—H2012 2 (JEREE

C. RhEAMSEAZBERAME

Attributable

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (ki property xEH of lease
B (FAR) MEMYE BEES Hinmn
1. An industrial complex located at 12,645.8 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Huanzhen Road, (Gross floor lease

Shangxia Development Zone, area)

Shuikou, Huizhou, Guangdong

Province, The PRC

VAPBIEREEMmKOE 12,645.8 T¥ 100% RHEAFA A

RIER FERAREN (BEEE)

—RIESERE
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